BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES Form 10-Q November 05, 2015 **UNITED STATES**

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

b QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2015

OR

" TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number: 01-13349

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

<u>Maine</u> (State or other jurisdiction of <u>01-0393663</u> (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization)

PO Box 400 <u>82 Main Street, Bar Harbor, ME</u> (Address of principal executive offices) Identification Number)

04609-0400 (Zip Code)

(207) 288-3314

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Inapplicable

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES **b** NO⁻⁻

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to submit and post such files). YES **b** NO⁻⁻

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, a ccelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act: Large accelerated filer "Accelerated filer **b** Non-accelerated filer (do not check if a smaller reporting company)" Smaller reporting company "

INDICATE BY CHECK MARK WHETHER THE REGISTRANT IS A SHELL COMPANY (AS DEFINED IN RULE 12B-2 OF THE EXCHANGE ACT): YES: "NO: **b**

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock as of the latest practicable date:

Class of Common Stock
\$2.00 Par ValueNumber of Shares Outstanding
5,997,231November 3, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page No.
PART I	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Interim Financial Statements (unaudited):	
	Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014	3
	Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	4
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	5
	Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	6
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	7
	Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements	8-36
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	36-62
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	62-65
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	65
PART II	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	66
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	66
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	66
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	66
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	66
Item 5.	Other Information	66
Item 6.	Exhibits	67
Signatures		67
Exhibit In	dex	68
		3

Exhibits

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

	Sep	tember 30,	December 3	
	2	2015		2014
Assets				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	12,336	\$	9,800
Securities available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost of \$490,477				
and \$458,370, respectively)		502,680		470,525
Federal Home Loan Bank stock		23,593		21,354
Loans		975,950		919,024
Allowance for loan losses		(9,037)		(8,969)
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses		966,913		910,055
Premises and equipment, net		20,785		20,518
Goodwill		4,935		4,935
Bank owned life insurance		23,575		8,141
Other assets		13,104		13,992
TOTAL ASSETS	\$1,	,567,921	\$1	,459,320
Liabilities				
Deposits:				
Demand and other non-interest bearing deposits	\$	96,847	\$	78,802
NOW accounts		155,342		153,499
Savings and money market deposits		286,475		247,685
Time deposits		472,230		378,063
Total deposits	1,	,010,894		858,049
Short-term borrowings		254,720		313,520
Long-term advances from Federal Home Loan Bank		135,886		128,500
Junior subordinated debentures		5,000		5,000
Other liabilities		7,309		7,964
TOTAL LIABILITIES	1,	,413,809	1	,313,033

Shareholders' equity

Capital stock, par value \$2.00; authorized 20,000,000 and 10,000,000		
shares;		
issued 6,788,407 shares at September 30, 2015 and December 31,		
2014, respectively	13,577	13,577
Surplus	21,404	20,905
Retained earnings	120,352	113,149
Accumulated other comprehensive income:		
Prior service cost and unamortized net actuarial losses on employee		
benefit plans, net of tax of (\$253) and (\$251), at September 30,		
2015 and		
December 31, 2014, respectively	(469)	(488)
Net unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale, net of		
tax		
of \$4,017 and \$3,997, at September 30, 2015 and December 31,		
2014, respectively	7,460	7,423
Portion of OTTI attributable to non-credit gains, net of tax of \$254		
and \$257, at		
September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively	472	478
Net unrealized depreciation on derivative instruments, net of tax		
of \$810 and \$389, at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014,		
respectively	(1,504)	(722)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income	5,959	6,691
Less: cost of 793,477 and 842,082 shares of treasury stock at		
September 30, 2015 and		
December 31, 2014, respectively	(7,180)	(8,035)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	154,112	146,287
		** *** ***
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	\$1,567,921	\$1,459,320

All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the 3-for-2 stock split (dividend) during May 2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)

	Three Mor	nths Ended	Nine Months Ended		
	September 30,		Septem	ber 30,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Interest and dividend income:					
Interest and fees on loans	\$10,127	\$10,016	\$29,449	\$28,285	
Interest on securities	4,008	3,719	11,502	11,704	
Dividend on FHLB stock	191	71	380	209	
Total interest and dividend income	14,326	13,806	41,331	40,198	
Interest expense:					
Deposits	1,596	1,477	4,509	4,376	
Short-term borrowings	233	197	725	477	
Long-term debt	801	755	2,517	2,545	
Total interest expense	2,630	2,429	7,751	7,398	
Net interest income	11,696	11,377	33,580	32,800	
Provision for loan losses	425	491	1,320	1,376	
Net interest income after provision for loan					
losses	11,271	10,886	32,260	31,424	
Non-interest income:					
Trust and other financial services	957	954	2,887	3,028	
Service charges on deposit accounts	224	245	677	747	
Debit card income	477	436	1,245	1,156	
Net securities gains		(81)	1,206	666	
Other operating income	370	262	858	628	
Total non-interest income	2,028	1,816	6,873	6,225	
Non-interest expense:					
Salaries and employee benefits	4,623	4,249	13,244	12,448	
Occupancy expense	550	508	1,697	1,616	
Furniture and equipment expense	584	569	1,729	1,606	
Debit card expenses	119	111	327	308	
FDIC insurance assessments	212	165	623	530	
Other operating expense	1,732	1,610	5,134	4,911	
Total non-interest expense	7,820	7,212	22,754	21,419	

Edgar Filing: BA	R HARBOR	BANKSHARE	S - Form 10-Q	
Income before income taxes Income taxes	5,479 1,548	5,490 1,623	16,379 4,694	16,230 4,719
Net income	\$ 3,931	\$ 3,867	\$11,685	\$11,511
Per Common Share Data: Basic earnings per share Diluted earnings per share	\$ 0.66 \$ 0.65	\$ 0.65 \$ 0.65	\$ 1.96 \$ 1.93	\$ 1.94 \$ 1.93

All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the 3-for-2 stock split (dividend) during May 2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

(Dollars in thousands)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended

	Septem 2015	ber 30, 2014
Net income Other comprehensive income: Net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on securities available for sale,	\$ 3,931	\$ 3,867
net of tax of \$1,739 and \$247, respectively Less reclassification adjustment for net gains related to securities available for sale	3,229	488
included in net income, net of tax of \$0 and \$28, respectively Net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on interest rate derivatives,		53
net of tax of (\$339) and \$58, respectively Actuarial loss on supplemental executive retirement plan,	(620)	110
net of related tax of \$3 and \$3, respectively	7	5
Total other comprehensive income	2,616	656
Total comprehensive income	\$ 6,547	\$ 4,523
	Nine Mont Septem 2015	
Net income	\$11,685	\$11,511
Other comprehensive income: Net unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale,	ψ11,005	φ11,511
net of tax of \$439 and \$6,195, respectively Less reclassification adjustment for net gains related to securities available for sale	815	12,035
included in net income, net of tax of (\$422) and (\$226), respectively	(784)	(440)
Net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on interest rate derivatives,	(782)	159

net of tax of (\$421) and \$82, respectively Actuarial loss on supplemental executive retirement plan,

net of related tax of \$2 and \$7, respectively	19	14
Total other comprehensive (loss) income	(732)	11,768
Total comprehensive income	\$10,953	\$23,279

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

Accumulated

Other

Total

	Capital Reta		Retained	Shareholders'		
	Stock	Surplus	Earnings	income (loss)	Stock	Equity
Balance December 31, 2013	\$ 9,051	\$25,085	\$103,907	\$(7,940)	\$(8,724)	\$121,379
Net income			11,511			11,511
Total other comprehensive income				11,768		11,768
Dividend declared:						
Common stock (\$0.670 per share)			(3,967)			(3,967)
Purchase of Treasury Stock (327 shares)					(8)	(8)
Stock options exercised (24,456 shares),						
including related tax effects		27	(9)		417	435
Three-for-two stock split	4,526	(4,526)				
Recognition of stock based						
compensation expense		236				236
Restricted stock grants (2,878 shares)		(53)			53	
Balance September 30, 2014	\$13,577	\$20,769	\$111,442	\$ 3,828	\$(8,262)	\$141,354

	Capital		Rotainod	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Tragentry	Total Sharaholders'
	Stock	Surplus		income (loss)	Stock	Equity
Balance December 31, 2014	\$13,577	\$20,905	0	· · · ·	\$(8,035)	\$146,287
Net income			11,685			11,685
Total other comprehensive income				(732)		(732)
Dividend declared:						
Common stock (\$0.750 per share)			(4,480)			(4,480)
Purchase of Treasury Stock (656 shares)					(24)	(24)
Stock options exercised (43,221 shares)						
including related tax effects Recognition of stock based		118	(2)		773	889
compensation expense		487				487
Restricted stock grants (6,040 shares)		(106)			106	

Balance September 30, 2015\$13,577\$21,404\$120,352\$5,959\$(7,180)\$154,112

All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the 3-for-2 stock split (dividend) during May 2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

(Dollars in thousands)

(unaudited)

	2015	2014
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Net income	\$ 11,685	\$ 11,511
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by		
operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment	1,301	1,212
Amortization of core deposit intangible	69	69
Provision for loan losses	1,320	1,376
Net securities gains	(1,206)	(666)
Net amortization of bond premiums and discounts	1,795	2,208
Recognition of stock based expense	487	236
Gains on sale of other real estate owned	(64)	
Net change in other assets	(16)	(2,416)
Net change in other liabilities	(655)	(384)
Net cash provided by operating activities	14,716	13,146
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Purchases of securities available for sale	(136,700)	(78,433)
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal paydowns of		
mortgage-backed securities	83,576	51,132
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale	20,428	26,563
Net (increase) decrease in Federal Home Loan Bank stock	(2,239)	(2,984)
Purchases of bank owned life insurance	(15,000)	
Net loans made to customers and purchased loans	(58,603)	(46,624)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned	110	129
Capital expenditures	(1,568)	(1,325)
Net cash used in investing activities	(109,996)	(51,542)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Net increase in deposits	152,845	51,465
Net (decrease) increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements and		
fed funds purchased	(875)	(1,133)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances	17,393	36,800
Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances	(67,932)	(41,490)
Purchases of Treasury Stock	(24)	(8)
Proceeds from stock option exercises, including excess tax benefits	889	435
Restricted stock grant		
Payments of dividends	(4,480)	(3,967)
Net cash provided by financing activities	97,816	42,102

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	2,536	3,706
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	9,800	9,200
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 12,336	\$12,906
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:		
Cash paid during the period for:		
Interest	\$ 7,767	\$ 7,444
Income taxes	4,370	4,756
Schedule of noncash investing activities:		
Transfers from loans to other real estate owned	\$ 425	\$ 320

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated interim financial statements are unaudited. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All inter-company transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Amounts in the prior period financial statements are reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current period presentation. The net income reported for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, is not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2015, or any other interim periods.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2014, has been derived from audited consolidated financial statements at that date. The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States (U.S.) generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X (17 CFR Part 210). Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. For further information, please refer to the consolidated financial statements included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, and notes thereto.

Note 2: Management s Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, other-than-temporary impairments on securities, income tax estimates, and the valuation of intangible assets.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses (the allowance) is a significant accounting estimate used in the preparation of the Company s consolidated financial statements. The allowance is available to absorb losses on loans and is maintained at a level that, in management s judgment, is appropriate for the amount of risk inherent in the loan portfolio, given past and present conditions. The allowance is increased by provisions charged to operating expense and by recoveries on loans previously charged-off, and is decreased by loans or portion of loans charged-off as uncollectible.

Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance involves a high degree of judgment. The determination of the adequacy of the allowance and provisioning for estimated losses is evaluated regularly based on a review of loans, with particular emphasis on non-performing or other loans that management believes warrant special consideration. The ongoing evaluation process includes a formal analysis, which considers among other factors: the nature of the loan portfolios, business and economic conditions, real estate market conditions, collateral values, changes in product offerings or loan terms, loan growth, experience, ability, and depth of management, changes in underwriting and/or collection policies and procedures, changes in volumes of loan portfolios and speed of loan portfolio growth, concentrations to industries or individual borrowers, external factors including industry or regulatory changes, historical

charge-off experience, delinquency trends, non-performing loan trends, the performance of individual loans in relation to contract terms, loan loss emergence periods, and estimated fair values of collateral.

The allowance consists of allowances established for specific loans including impaired loans; pools of loans based on historical charge-offs by loan types; and supplemental allowances that adjust historical loss experience to reflect current economic conditions, industry specific risks, and other observable data.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, changing economic conditions and the economic prospects of the borrowers may necessitate future additions or reductions to the allowance. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the allowance, which also may necessitate future additions or reductions to the allowance, based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments on Investment Securities: One of the significant estimates relating to securities is the evaluation of other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI). If a decline in the fair value of a security is judged to be other-than-temporary, and management does not intend to sell the security and believes it is more-likely-than-not the Company will not be required to sell the security prior to recovery of cost or amortized cost, the portion of the total impairment attributable to the credit loss is recognized in earnings, and the remaining difference between the security s amortized cost basis and its fair value is included in other comprehensive income.

For impaired available for sale debt securities that management intends to sell, or where management believes it is more-likely-than-not that the Company will be required to sell, an OTTI charge is recognized in earnings equal to the difference between fair value and cost or amortized cost basis of the security. The fair value of the OTTI security becomes its new cost basis.

The evaluation of securities for impairments is a quantitative and qualitative process, which is subject to risks and uncertainties and is intended to determine whether declines in the fair value of securities should be recognized in current period earnings. The risks and uncertainties include changes in general economic conditions, the issuer s financial condition and/or future prospects, the effects of changes in interest rates or credit spreads and the expected recovery period of unrealized losses. The Company has a security monitoring process that identifies securities that, due to certain characteristics, as described below, are subjected to an enhanced analysis on a quarterly basis.

Securities that are in an unrealized loss position are reviewed at least quarterly to determine if an OTTI is present based on certain quantitative and qualitative factors and measures. The primary factors considered in evaluating whether a decline in value of securities is other-than-temporary include: (a) the cause of the impairment; (b) the financial condition, credit rating and future prospects of the issuer; (c) whether the underlying debtor is current on contractually obligated interest and principal payments; (d) the volatility of the securities fair value; (e) performance indicators of the underlying assets in the security including default rates, delinquency rates, percentage of non-performing assets, loan to collateral value ratios, conditional payment rates, third party guarantees, current levels

of subordination, vintage, and geographic concentration and; (f) any other information and observable data considered relevant in determining whether an OTTI has occurred, including the expectation of the receipt of all principal and interest due.

In addition, for securitized financial assets with contractual cash flows, such as private label mortgage-backed securities (MBS), the Company periodically updates its best estimate of cash flows over the life of the security. The Company s best estimate of cash flows is based upon assumptions consistent with the current economic environment, similar to those the Company believes market participants would useEstimating future cash flows is a quantitative and qualitative process that incorporates information received from third party sources along with certain assumptions and judgments regarding the future performance of the underlying collateral. In addition, projections of expected future cash flows may change based upon new information regarding the performance of the underlying collateral.

Income Taxes: The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. If current available information indicates that it is more-likely-than-not that deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is established. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Significant management judgment is required in determining income tax expense and deferred tax assets and liabilities. As of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, there was no valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets: In connection with acquisitions, the Company generally records as assets on its consolidated financial statements both goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, such as core deposit intangibles.

The Company evaluates whether the carrying value of its goodwill has become impaired, in which case the value is reduced through a charge to its earnings. Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least annually, or upon a triggering event using certain fair value techniques. Goodwill impairment testing is performed at the segment (or reporting unit) level. Goodwill is assigned to reporting units at the date the goodwill is initially recorded. Once goodwill has been assigned to the reporting units, it no longer retains its association with a particular acquisition, and all of the activities within a reporting unit, whether acquired or organically grown, are available to support the value of the goodwill.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in accordance with the purchase method of accounting for business combinations. Goodwill is not amortized but, instead, is subject to impairment tests on at least an annual basis or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. The Company completes its annual goodwill impairment test as of December 31 of each year. The impairment testing process is conducted by assigning assets and goodwill to each reporting unit. Currently, the Company s goodwill is evaluated at the entity level as there is only one reporting unit. The Company first assesses certain qualitative factors to determine if it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. If it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value, then the fair value of each reporting unit is compared to the recorded book value (step one). If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodwill is not considered impaired and step two is not considered necessary. If the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the impairment test continues (step two) by comparing the carrying value of the reporting unit s goodwill to the implied fair value of goodwill. The implied fair value is computed by adjusting all assets and liabilities of the reporting unit to current fair value with the offset adjustment to goodwill. The adjusted goodwill balance is the implied fair value of the goodwill. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying fair value of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. At December 31, 2014, there was no indication of impairment that led the Company to believe it needed to perform a two-step test.

Any changes in the estimates used by the Company to determine the carrying value of its goodwill, or which otherwise adversely affect their value or estimated lives, would adversely affect the Company s consolidated results of operations.

Note 3: Three-for-two Common Stock Split

On April 22, 2014, the Company s Board of Directors declared a three-for-two split of its common stock, payable as a large stock dividend, which was paid on May 19, 2014 (the payment date) to all stockholders of record at the close of business on May 5, 2014. As of April 22, 2014, the Company had approximately 3,944,290 shares of common stock outstanding. After the stock split as a large stock dividend, the number of shares of Company common stock outstanding increased to 5,916,435. All previously reported share and per share data included in public filings subsequent to the payment date have been adjusted to reflect the retroactive effect of this three-for-two stock split.

Note 4: Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the Company, such as the Company s dilutive stock options and awards.

The following is a reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, and 2014:

	Three Months Ended			Nine Months Ended			
	2	September 30, 2015 2014		September 3 2015 20		ber 30, 2014	
Net income	\$	3,931	\$	3,867	\$	11,685	\$ 11,511
Weighted average common shares outstanding Basic Effect of dilutive employee stock options Diluted	,	991,073 75,757 066,830		9,931,342 52,581 9,983,923		5,972,927 81,667 5,054,594	5,921,427 44,147 5,965,574
Anti-dilutive options excluded from							
earnings per share calculation		64,763		41,256		66,960	85,431
Per Common Share Data: Basic earnings per share	\$	0.66	\$	0.65	\$	1.96	\$ 1.94

Edgar Filing: BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES - Form 10-Q							
Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.65 \$	0.65	\$	1.93 \$	1.93	

All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the 3-for-2 stock split (dividend) during May 2014.

Note 5: Securities Available For Sale

The following tables summarize the securities available for sale portfolio as of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014:

September 30, 2015		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	Estimated
Available for Sale:	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-sponsored enterprises US Government agency Private label Obligations of states and	\$295,647 82,213 2,968	\$ 7,750 1,734 782	\$ 831 270 8	\$302,566 83,677 3,742
political subdivisions thereof Total	109,649 \$490,477	3,621 \$13,887	575 \$1,684	112,695 \$502,680
December 31, 2014		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	Estimated
Available for Sale:	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-sponsored enterprises US Government agency Private label Obligations of states and	\$282,217 82,249 3,723	\$ 7,530 1,626 815	\$1,537 529 14	\$288,210 83,346 4,524
political subdivisions thereof	90,181	4,516	252	94,445

Securities Maturity Distribution: The following table summarizes the maturity distribution of the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale as of September 30, 2015. Actual maturities may differ from the final maturities noted below because issuers may have the right to prepay or call certain securities. In the case of MBS, actual maturities may also differ from expected maturities due to the amortizing nature of the underlying mortgage collateral, and the fact that borrowers have the right to prepay.

Securities Available for Sale

Amortized Estimated

	(Cost	Fair	· Value
Due one year or less	\$	5	\$	5
Due after one year through five years		5,293	5	5,381
Due after five years through ten years	1	5,972	16	5,912
Due after ten years	46	9,207	480),382
Total	\$49	0,477	\$502	2,680

Securities Impairment: As a part of the Company s ongoing security monitoring process, the Company identifies securities in an unrealized loss position that could potentially be other-than-temporarily impaired (OTTI). For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not have any OTTI losses recognized in earnings (before taxes).

Upon initial impairment of a security, total OTTI losses represent the excess of the amortized cost over the fair value. For subsequent impairments of the same security, total OTTI losses represent additional credit losses and or declines in fair value subsequent to the previously recorded OTTI losses, if applicable. Unrealized OTTI losses recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (OCI)

represent the non-credit component of OTTI losses on debt securities. Net impairment losses recognized in earnings represent the credit component of OTTI losses on debt securities.

As of September 30, 2015, the Company held eleven private label MBS (debt securities) with a total amortized cost (i.e. carrying value) of \$1,360 for which OTTI losses have previously been recognized in pre-tax earnings dating back to the fourth quarter of 2008. For all eleven of these securities, the Company previously recognized credit losses in excess of the unrealized losses in accumulated OCI, creating an unrealized gain of \$472, net of tax, as included in accumulated OCI as of September 30, 2015, compared with net unrealized gains of \$478, net of tax, at December 31, 2014.

The OTTI losses previously recognized in earnings represented management s best estimate of credit losses inherent in the securities based on discounted, bond-specific future cash flow projections using assumptions about cash flows associated with the pools of mortgage loans underlying each security. In estimating those cash flows the Company takes a variety of factors into consideration including, but not limited to, loan level credit characteristics, current delinquency and non-performing loan rates, current levels of subordination and credit support, recent default rates and future constant default rate estimates, original and current loan to collateral value ratios, recent collateral loss severities and future collateral loss severity estimates, recent and historical conditional prepayment rates and future conditional prepayment rate assumptions, and other estimates of future collateral performance.

Despite elevated levels of delinquencies, defaults and losses in the underlying residential mortgage loan collateral, given credit enhancements resulting from the structures of the individual securities, the Company expects that as of September 30, 2015, it will recover the amortized cost basis of its private label MBS as depicted in the table below and has therefore concluded that such securities were not OTTI as of that date. Nevertheless, given recent market conditions, it is possible that adverse changes in repayment performance and fair value could occur in future periods that would change the Company s current best estimates.

The following table displays the beginning balance of OTTI related to historical credit losses on debt securities held by the Company at the beginning of the current reporting period, as well as changes in credit losses recognized in pre-tax earnings for the three and nine months ending September 30, 2015, and 2014.

	2015	2014
Estimated credit losses as of June 30, Additions for credit losses for securities on which	\$3,180	\$3,413
OTTI has been previously recognized Additions for credit losses for securities on which		
OTTI has not been previously recognized Reductions for securities paid off during the period Estimated credit losses as of September 30,	 \$3,180	 \$3,413

	2015	2014
Estimated credit losses as of prior year-end, Additions for credit losses for securities on which	\$3,413	\$3,923
OTTI has been previously recognized Additions for credit losses for securities on which		
OTTI has not been previously recognized Reductions for securities paid off during the period Estimated credit losses as of September 30,	233 \$3,180	 510 \$3,413

As of September 30, 2015, based on a review of the remaining securities in the securities portfolio, the Company concluded that it expects to recover its amortized cost basis for such securities. This conclusion was based on the issuers continued satisfaction of the securities obligations in accordance with their contractual terms and the expectation that they will continue to do so through the maturity of the security, the expectation that the Company will receive the entire amount of future contractual cash flows, as well as the evaluation of the fundamentals of the issuers financial condition and other objective evidence. Accordingly, the Company concluded that any declines in the values of those securities were temporary and that any additional OTTI charges were not appropriate at September 30, 2015. As of that date, the Company did not intend to sell nor anticipated that it would more-likely-than-not be required to sell any of its impaired securities, that is, where fair value is less than the cost basis of the security.

The following table summarizes the fair value of securities with continuous unrealized losses for less than 12 months and those that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. All securities referenced are debt securities.

	Le Estimate	ess than 12 mor d		12 Estimate	months or lon d	0	Estimated	Total I	
September 30, 2015	Fair	Number of U	U nrealized	Fair	Number of U	U nrealized	Fair	Number of U	U nrealized
Description of Securities:	Value	Investments	Losses	Value	Investments	Losses	Value	Investments	Losses
Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-	đ								
sponsored enterprises US Governmen	\$36,750	57	\$ 275	\$22,812	32	\$556	\$ 59,562	89	\$ 831
agency	10,229	19	120	10,989	18	150	21,218		270
Private label Obligations of states and	8	1		182	5	8	190	6	8
political subdivisions									
thereof	26,900	48	392	4,275	14	183	31,175		575
Total	\$73,887	125	\$ 787	\$38,258	69	\$897	\$112,145	194	\$1,684

Less than 12 months	12 months or longer	Total	
Estimated	Estimated	Estimated	

December 31, 2014	Fair	Number of	Unrealized	Fair	Number of U	U nrealized	Fair	Number of U	J nrealized
2014	Value	Investments	Losses	Value	Investments	Losses	Value	Investments	Losses
Description of Securities:									
Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-									
sponsored									
enterprises	\$45,899	53	\$1,168	\$35,511	45	\$369	\$ 81,410	98	\$1,537
US Government									
agency	19,404	24	483	3,657	21	46	23,061	45	529
Private label	336	4	7	145	4	7	481	8	14
Obligations of states and									
political subdivisions									
thereof	12,549	28	240	2,724	5	12	15,273	33	252
Total	\$78,188		\$1,898	\$42,037	75		\$120,225	184	\$2,332

For securities with unrealized losses, the following information was considered in determining that the impairments were not other-than-temporary:

•

Mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises: As of September 30, 2015, the total unrealized losses on these securities amounted to \$831, compared with \$1,537 at December 31, 2014. All of these securities were credit rated AA+ by the major credit rating agencies. Company management believes these securities have minimal credit risk, as these Government-sponsored enterprises play a vital role in the nation s financial markets. Management s analysis indicates that the unrealized losses at September 30, 2015 were attributed to changes in current market yields and pricing spreads for similar securities since the date the underlying securities were purchased, and does not consider these securities to be OTTI at September 30, 2015.

Mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. Government agencies: As of September 30, 2015, the total unrealized losses on these securities amounted to \$270, compared with \$529 at December 31, 2014. All of these securities were credit rated AA+ by the major credit rating agencies. Management s analysis indicates that these securities bear little or no credit risk because they are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States. The Company attributes the unrealized losses at September 30, 2015 to changes in current market yields and pricing spreads for similar securities since the date the underlying securities were purchased, and does not consider these securities to be OTTI at September 30, 2015.

Private label mortgage-backed securities: As of September 30, 2015, the total unrealized losses on the Bank s private label MBS amounted to \$8, compared with \$14 at December 31, 2014. The Company attributes the unrealized losses at September 30, 2015 to the current illiquid market for non-agency MBS, a still recovering housing market, risk-related market pricing discounts for non-agency MBS and credit rating downgrades on certain private label MBS owned by the Company. Based upon the foregoing considerations and the expectation that the Company will receive all of the future contractual cash flows related to amortized cost on these securities, the Company does not consider there to be any additional OTTI with respect to these securities at September 30, 2015.

.

Obligations of states of the U.S. and political subdivisions thereof: As of September 30, 2015, the total unrealized losses on the Bank s municipal securities amounted to \$575, compared with \$252 at December 31, 2014. The Bank s municipal securities primarily consist of general obligation bonds and to a lesser extent, revenue bonds. General obligation bonds carry less risk, as they are supported by the full faith, credit and taxing authority of the issuing government and in the cases of school districts, are additionally supported by state aid. Revenue bonds are generally backed by municipal revenue streams generated through user fees or lease payments associated with specific municipal projects that have been financed.

Municipal bonds are frequently supported with insurance, which guarantees that, in the event the issuer experiences financial problems, the insurer will step in and assume payment of both principal and interest. Historically, insurance support has strengthened an issuer s underlying credit rating to AAA or AA status. Starting in 2008 and continuing through 2015, many of the insurance companies providing municipal bond insurance experienced financial difficulties and, accordingly, were downgraded by at least one of the major credit rating agencies. Consequently, a portion of the Bank s municipal bond portfolio was downgraded by at least one of the major credit rating agencies. Notwithstanding the credit rating downgrades, at September 30, 2015, the Bank s municipal bond portfolio did not contain any below investment grade securities as reported by major credit rating agencies. In addition, at September 30, 2015, all municipal bond issuers were current on contractually obligated interest and principal payments.

The Company attributes the unrealized losses at September 30, 2015 to changes in current market yields and pricing spreads for similar securities since the date the underlying securities were purchased and, to a lesser extent, changes in credit ratings on certain securities. The Company also attributes the unrealized losses to ongoing media attention and market concerns about the prolonged recovery from the national economic recession and the impact it might have on the future financial stability of municipalities throughout the country. Accordingly, the Company does not consider these municipal securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2015.

At September 30, 2015, the Company had no intent to sell nor believed it is more-likely-than-not that it would be required to sell any of its impaired securities as identified and discussed immediately above, and therefore did not consider these securities to be other than temporarily impaired as of that date.

Securities Gains and Losses: The following table summarizes realized gains and losses on securities available for sale for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014.

	Proceeds		Other			
	from Sale of			Than		
	Securities			Temporary		
	Available	Realized	Realized	Impairment		
	for Sale	Gains	Losses	Losses	Net	
Three months ended September 30,						
2015	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
2014	\$ 4,342	\$ \$ 27	\$108	\$ \$	\$ (81)	
Nine months ended September 30,						
2015	\$20,428	\$1,206	\$	\$ \$	\$1,206	
2014	\$26,563	\$ 809	\$143	\$	\$ 666	

Note 6: Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are carried at the principal amounts outstanding adjusted by partial charge-offs and net deferred loan origination costs or fees.

Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount of loans outstanding. Residential real estate and home equity loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when reaching 90 days past due, or in process of foreclosure, or sooner if judged appropriate by management. Consumer loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when reaching 90 days or more past due, or sooner if management determines there is a reason to doubt full collectability of all outstanding principal and interest. Secured consumer loans are written down to realizable value and unsecured consumer loans are charged-off upon reaching 120 days past due. Commercial real estate loans and commercial business loans that are 90 days or more past due are generally placed on non-accrual status, unless secured by sufficient cash or other assets immediately convertible to cash, and the loan is in the process of collection. Commercial real estate and commercial business here is a reason to doubt full collectability of all outstanding principal and interest. Secured on non-accrual status prior to the 90 days delinquency date if management determines there is a reason to doubt full collectability of all outstanding principal and interest. When a loan has been placed on non-accrual status, previously accrued and uncollected interest is reversed against interest on loans. A loan can be returned to accrual status when there is evidence of an ability to adhere to the required repayment schedule and the loan has performed for a period of time, generally six months.

Commercial real estate and commercial business loans are considered impaired when it becomes probable the bank will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status and collateral value. In considering loans for evaluation of impairment, management generally excludes smaller balance, homogeneous loans, residential mortgage loans, home equity loans, and all consumer loans, unless such loans were restructured in a troubled debt restructuring. These loans are collectively evaluated for risk of loss.

Loan origination, commitment fees and direct loan origination costs are deferred, and the net amount is amortized as an adjustment of the related loans yield, using the level yield method over the estimated lives of the related loans.

The Company s lending activities are principally conducted in downeast, midcoast and central Maine. The following table summarizes the composition of the loan portfolio as of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014:

LOAN PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

	September 30,	December 31,
	2015	2014
Commercial real estate mortgages	\$372,517	\$325,949
Commercial and industrial	77,888	73,893
Commercial construction and land development	25,154	25,421
Agricultural and other loans to farmers	32,520	30,471
Total commercial loans	508,079	455,734
Residential real estate mortgages	391,068	382,678
Home equity loans	51,290	51,795
Other consumer loans	10,147	12,140
Total consumer loans	452,505	446,613
Tax exempt loans	15,319	16,693
Net deferred loan costs and fees	47	(16)
Total loans	975,950	919,024
Allowance for loan losses	(9,037)	(8,969)
Total loans net of allowance for loan losses	\$966,913	\$910,055

Loan Origination/Risk Management: The Bank has certain lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize loan income within an acceptable level of risk. The Bank s board of directors reviews and approves these policies and procedures on a regular basis. A reporting system supplements the review process by providing management and the board with frequent reports related to loan production, loan quality, concentrations of credit, loan delinquencies and non-performing loans and potential problem loans. The Bank seeks to diversify the loan portfolio as a means of managing risk associated with fluctuations in economic conditions.

<u>Commercial Real Estate Mortgages</u>: The Bank s commercial real estate mortgage loans are collateralized by liens on real estate, typically have variable interest rates and amortize over a 15 to 20 year period. These loans are underwritten primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate. Payments on loans secured by such properties are largely dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan. Accordingly, repayment of these loans may be subject to adverse economic conditions to a greater extent than other types of loans. The Bank seeks to minimize these risks in a variety of ways, including giving careful consideration to the property s operating history, future operating projections, current and projected occupancy, location and physical condition in connection with underwriting these loans. The underwriting analysis also includes credit verification, analysis of global cash flows, appraisals and a review of the financial condition of the borrower. Reflecting the Bank s business region, at September 30, 2015, approximately

26.1% of the commercial real estate mortgage portfolio was represented by loans to the lodging industry. The Bank underwrites lodging industry loans as operating businesses, lending primarily to seasonal establishments with stabilized cash flows.

<u>Commercial and Industrial Loans</u>: Commercial and industrial loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the borrower s ability to operate profitably, and prudently expand its business. Commercial and industrial loans are primarily made in the Bank s market areas and are underwritten on the basis of the borrower s ability to service the debt from income. As a general practice, the Bank takes as collateral a lien on available real estate, equipment or other assets owned by the borrower and obtains a personal guaranty of the borrower(s) or principal(s). Working capital loans are primarily collateralized by short-term assets whereas term loans are primarily collateralized by long-term assets. The risk in commercial and industrial loans is principally due to the type of collateral securing these loans. The increased risk also derives from the expectation that commercial and industrial loans generally will be serviced principally from the operations of the business, and, if not successful, these loans are primarily secured by tangible, non-real estate collateral.

Construction and Land Development Loans: The Bank makes loans to finance the construction of residential and non-residential properties. Construction loans generally are collateralized by first liens on real estate. The Bank conducts periodic inspections, either directly or through an agent, prior to approval of periodic draws on these loans. Underwriting guidelines similar to those described immediately above are also used in the Bank s construction lending activities. Construction loans involve additional risks attributable to the fact that loan funds are advanced against a project under construction and the project is of uncertain value prior to its completion. Because of uncertainties inherent in estimating construction costs, the market value of the completed project and the effects of governmental regulation on real property, it can be difficult to accurately evaluate the total funds required to complete a project and the related loan to value ratio. As a result of these uncertainties, construction lending often involves the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment dependent, in part, on the success of the ultimate project rather than the ability of a borrower or guarantor to repay the loan. In many cases the success of the project can also depend upon the financial support/strength of the sponsorship. If the Bank is forced to foreclose on a project prior to completion, there is no assurance that the Bank will be able to recover the entire unpaid portion of the loan. In addition, the Bank may be required to fund additional amounts to complete a project and may have to hold the property for an indeterminate period of time. While the Bank has underwriting procedures designed to identify what it believes to be acceptable levels of risks in construction lending, no assurance can be given that these procedures will prevent losses from the risks described above.

Residential Real Estate Mortgages: The Bank originates and purchases first-lien, adjustable-rate and fixed-rate, one-to-four-family residential real estate loans for the construction, purchase or refinancing of residential property. These loans are principally collateralized by owner-occupied properties, and to a lesser extent second homes and vacation properties, and are amortized over 10 to 30 years. From time to time the Bank will sell longer-term, low rate, residential mortgage loans to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) with servicing rights retained. This practice allows the Bank to better manage interest rate risk and liquidity risk. In an effort to manage risk of loss and strengthen secondary market liquidity opportunities, management typically uses secondary market underwriting, appraisal, and servicing guidelines for all loans, including those held in its portfolio. Loans on one-to-four-family residential real estate are mostly originated in amounts of no more than 80% of appraised value or have private mortgage insurance. Mortgage title insurance and hazard insurance are required. Construction loans have a unique risk, because they are secured by an incomplete dwelling. This risk is reduced through more stringent underwriting standards, including regular inspections throughout the construction period.

<u>Home Equity Loans</u>: The Bank originates home equity lines of credit and second mortgage loans (loans which are secured by a junior lien position on one-to-four-family residential real estate). These loans carry a higher risk than first mortgage residential loans as they are in a second position relating to collateral. Risk is reduced through underwriting criteria, which include credit verification, appraisals and evaluations, a review of the borrower's financial condition, and personal cash flows. A security interest, with title insurance when necessary, is taken in the underlying real estate.

Non-performing Loans: The following table sets forth information regarding non-accruing loans and accruing loans 90 days or more overdue at September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014.

TOTAL NON-PERFORMING LOANS

	September 30,	December 31,
	2015	2014
Commercial real estate mortgages	\$1,163	\$ 3,156
Commercial and industrial loans	297	624
Commercial construction and land development	1,260	1,328
Agricultural and other loans to farmers	16	84
Total commercial loans	2,736	5,192
Residential real estate mortgages	3,492	6,051
Home equity loans	791	1,029
Other consumer loans	14	16
Total consumer loans	4,297	7,096
Total non-accrual loans	7,033	12,288
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more		
Total non-performing loans	\$7,033	\$12,288

Troubled Debt Restructures: A Troubled Debt Restructure (TDR) results from a modification to a loan to a borrower who is experiencing financial difficulty in which the Bank grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider but for the debtor s financial difficulties. Financial difficulty arises when a debtor is bankrupt or contractually past due, or is likely to become so, based upon its ability to pay. A concession represents an accommodation not generally available to other customers, which may include a below-market interest rate, deferment of principal payments, extension of maturity dates, etc. Such accommodations extended to customers who are not experiencing financial difficulty do not result in TDR classification.

Summary information pertaining to the TDRs that occurred during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 follows:

		r the Three Mon September 3 2015 Pre-Modification Outstanding Recorded Investment			or the Nine Mont September 3 2015 Pre-Modification Outstanding Recorded Investment	
Commercial real estate mortgages Commercial and industrial loans Agricultural and other	3	\$214	\$226	3	\$ 214	\$ 226
loans to farmers Total commercial loans	 3	 214	 226	1 4	18 232	16 242
Residential real estate mortgages Home equity loans Other consumer loans Total consumer loans	 	\$ 	\$ 	3 3	\$1,267 1,267	\$1,266 1,266
Total	3	\$214	\$226	7	\$1,499	\$1,508

	-	r the Three Mon September 3 2014 Pre-Modification		For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 Pre-ModificationPost-Modification			
	Number of Loans	Outstanding Recorded Investment	Outstanding Recorded Investment	Number of Loans	Outstanding Recorded Investment	Outstanding Recorded Investment	
Agricultural and other							
loans to farmers Total commercial	1	\$100	\$99	1	\$ 100	\$ 99	
loans	1	100	99	1	100	99	
Total	1	\$100	\$ 99	1	\$ 100	\$ 99	

The following tables show the Bank s post-modification balance of TDRs listed by type of modification for TDRs that occurred during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014:

	Septemb Three	er 30, 2015	September 30, 2014 Three		
	Months Ended	Nine Months Ended	Months Ended	Nine Months Ended	
Extended maturity and adjusted interest rate	\$118	\$ 134	\$99	\$99	
Adjusted payment		607			
Adjusted payment and capitalized interest Extended maturity, adjusted interest rate,		187			
and adjusted payment	108	580			
Total	\$226	\$1,508	\$99	\$99	

As of September 30, 2015, the Bank had two agricultural loans to two relationships totaling \$108, six commercial real estate loans to four relationships totaling \$963, four commercial and industrial loans to three relationships totaling \$140, five residential real estate loans to five relationships totaling \$1,650, one home equity loan for \$18, and one other consumer loan for \$9, that were classified as TDRs. At

September 30, 2015, five of these TDRs totaling \$812 were classified as non-accrual, and none were past due 30 days or more and still accruing.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank had six real estate secured loans, six commercial and industrial loans, one agricultural loan, and one other consumer loan, to nine relationships totaling \$1,449 that were classified as TDRs. At December 31, 2014, seven of these TDRs totaling \$357 were classified as non-accrual, and none were past due 30 days or more and still accruing.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no defaults on loans that had been modified as TDRs within the previous twelve months. A default for purposes of this disclosure is a TDR in which the borrower is 90 days or more past due or results in foreclosure and repossession of the applicable collateral.

Past due loans: Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of the date such payments were due. The following tables set forth information regarding past due loans at September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014. Amounts shown exclude deferred loan origination fees and costs.

September 30, 2015 Commercial real	30-59 Days Past Due	60-89 Days Past e Due	90 Days or Greater	Total Past	Current	Total Loans	Non- Accrual	>90 Days Past Due and Accruing
estate mortgages Commercial and industrial Commercial construction	\$ 698 13	\$ 3	\$ 115 274	\$ 813 290	\$371,704 77,598	\$372,517 77,888	\$ 1,163 297	\$
and land development Agricultural and other			1,260	1,260	23,894	25,154	1,260	
loans to farmers Residential real	2			2	32,518	32,520	16	
estate mortgages Home equity Other consumer loans	1,429 25 57	78 60 6	1,149 767 2	2,656 852 65	388,412 50,438 10,082	391,068 51,290 10,147	3,492 791 14	
Tax exempt Total	 \$2,224	 \$147	 \$3,567	\$5,938	15,319 \$969,965	15,319 \$975,903	 \$ 7,033	 \$

December 31, 2014 Commercial real	30-59 Days Pass Due	60-89 Days t Past Due	90 Days or Greater	Past	Current	Total Loans	Non- Accrual	>90 Days Past Due and Accruing
estate mortgages	\$ 189	\$234	\$1,843	\$2,266	\$323,683	\$325,949	\$ 3,156	\$
Commercial and industrial Commercial construction	665	45	333	1,043	72,850	73,893	624	
and land development Agricultural and other			1,328	1,328	24,093	25,421	1,328	
loans to farmers Residential real	27		64	91	30,380	30,471	84	
estate mortgages	1,980	547	1,681	4,208	378,470	382,678	6,051	
Home equity	138	40	575	753	51,042	51,795	1,029	
Other consumer loans	231	5	7	243	11,897	12,140	16	
Tax exempt					16,693	16,693		\$
Total	\$3,230	\$871	\$5,831	\$9,932	\$909,108	\$919,040	\$12,288	\$

Impaired Loans: Impaired loans are all commercial loans for which the Company believes it is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement, as well as all loans modified into a TDR, if any. Allowances for losses on impaired loans are determined by the lower of the present value of the expected cash flows related to the loan, using the original contractual interest rate, and its recorded value, or in the case of collateral dependent loans, the lower of

the fair value of the collateral, less costs to dispose, and the recorded amount of the loans. When foreclosure is probable, impairment is measured based on the fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

Details of impaired loans as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 follows:

	Sept	September 30, 2015 Unpaid			December 31, 2014 Unpaid			
	Recorded	Principal	Related	Recorded	Principal	Related		
With no related allowance: Commercial real	Investment	Balance	Allowance	Investment	Balance	Allowance		
estate mortgages Commercial and industrial Commercial construction	\$1,583 212	\$1,627 246	\$	\$1,606 309	\$1,606 309	\$ 		
and land development Agricultural and other				1,328	3,253			
loans to farmers Residential real	108	108		181	181			
estate loans Home equity loans Other consumer Subtotal	1,302 18 \$3,223	1,447 18 \$3,446	 \$	389 \$3,813	419 \$5,768	 \$		
With an allowance: Commercial real								
estate mortgages Commercial and industrial Commercial construction	\$ 405 225	\$ 405 375	\$ 39 176	\$1,986 325	\$2,014 555	\$776 187		
and land development Agricultural and other	1,260	3,185	24					
loans to farmers Residential real								
estate loans Home equity loans Other consumer Subtotal	348 9 \$2,247	348 9 \$4,322	52 \$291	 10 \$2,321	 10 \$2,579	 1 \$964		
Total	\$5,470	\$7,768	\$291	\$6,134	\$8,347	\$964		

Details of impaired loans for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 follows:

	Three N		er 30, 2015	September 30, 2014 Three Months				
	End		Nine Mont	hs Ended	End		Nine Mont	hs Ended
	Average		Average		Average		Average	
	Recorded	Interest	Recorded	Interest	Recorded	Interest	Recorded	Interest
With no related allowance: Commercial real		Recorded	Investment	Recorded	Investment	Recorded	Investment	Recorded
estate mortgages Commercial and industrial Commercial construction	\$2,408 231	\$20 2	\$3,099 334	\$42 7	\$1,763 512	\$11 1	\$1,877 663	\$43 3
and land development Agricultural and					1,328		1,576	
other loans to farmers Residential real	123	3	155	7	143		89	2
estate mortgages Home equity loans Other consumer Subtotal	1,332 18 \$4,112	8 \$33	1,325 18 \$4,931	21 1 \$78	468 20 11 \$4,245	3 1 \$16	470 20 12 \$4,707	10 1 \$59
With an allowance: Commercial real								
estate mortgages Commercial and industrial Commercial construction	\$ 405 226 1,260	\$ 	\$ 405 228 1,260	\$ 	\$ 229 404 	\$ 	\$ 498 403 	\$

and land development Agricultural and								
other loans to								
farmers								
Residential real								
estate								
mortgages	348		346					
Home equity								
loans								
Other consumer	10		10					
Subtotal	\$2,249	\$	\$2,249	\$	\$ 633	\$	\$ 901	\$
	. , -	·						·
Total	\$6,361	\$33	\$7,180	\$78	\$4,878	\$16	\$5,608	\$59

Credit Quality Indicators/Classified Loans: In monitoring the credit quality of the portfolio, management applies a credit quality indicator to all categories of commercial loans. These credit quality indicators range from one through nine, with a higher number correlating to increasing risk of loss. These ratings are used as inputs to the calculation of the allowance for loan losses.

Consistent with regulatory guidelines, the Bank provides for the classification of loans which are considered to be of lesser quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss. The Bank considers a loan substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. Substandard loans have a well-defined weakness that jeopardizes liquidation of the debt. Substandard loans include those loans where there is the distinct possibility of some loss of principal, if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Loans that the Bank classifies as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those loans that are classified as substandard but also have the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. The possibility of loss is high but because of certain important and reasonably specific pending factors which may work to the advantage and strengthening of the loan, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its more exact status may be determined. Pending factors include proposed merger, acquisition, or liquidation procedures, capital injection, perfecting liens on additional collateral and refinancing plans. The entire amount of the loan might not be classified as doubtful when collection of a specific portion appears highly probable. Loans are generally not classified doubtful for an extended period of time (i.e., over a year).

Loans that the Bank classifies as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as an asset is not warranted and the uncollectible amounts are charged-off. This classification does not mean that the asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this worthless asset even though partial recovery may be affected in the future. Losses are taken in the period in which they are determined to be uncollectible.

Loans that do not expose the Bank to risk sufficient to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories, but which possess some weaknesses, are designated special mention. A special mention loan has potential weaknesses that deserve management s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset or in the institution s credit position at some future date. This might include loans which the lending officer may be unable to supervise properly because of: (i) lack of expertise, inadequate loan agreement; (ii) the poor condition of or lack of control over collateral; (iii) failure to obtain proper documentation or any other deviations from prudent lending practices. Economic or market conditions which may, in the future, affect the obligor may warrant special mention of the asset. Loans for which an adverse trend in the borrower's operations or an imbalanced position in the balance sheet which has not reached a point where the liquidation is jeopardized may be included in this classification. Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to sufficient risks to warrant classification.

The following tables summarize the commercial loan portfolio as of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, by credit quality indicator. Credit quality indicators are reassessed for each applicable commercial loan at least annually, or upon receipt and analysis of the borrower s financial statements, when applicable. Consumer loans, which principally consist of residential mortgage loans, are not rated, but are evaluated for credit quality after origination based on delinquency status (see past due loan aging table above).

	Commercial		Commercial construction	Agricultural	
	real estate	Commercial	and land	and other loans to	
September 30, 2015	mortgages	and industrial		farmers	Total
Pass	\$346,503	\$72,568	\$23,607	\$32,182	\$474,860
Other Assets Especially					
Mentioned	8,845	2,623	287	183	11,938
Substandard	17,169	2,696	1,260	155	21,280
Doubtful					
Loss		1			1
Total	\$372,517	\$77,888	\$25,154	\$32,520	\$508,079

	Commercial		Commercial construction	Agricultural	
		Commercial		and other	
	real estate		and land	loans to	
December 31, 2014	mortgages	and industrial	development	farmers	Total
Pass	\$302,376	\$62,226	\$23,290	\$30,047	\$417,939

Other Assets Especially					
Mentioned	11,501	7,349		193	19,043
Substandard	12,072	4,318	2,131	231	18,752
Doubtful					
Loss					
Total	\$325,949	\$73,893	\$25,421	\$30,471	\$455,734

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses (the allowance) is a reserve established through a provision for loan losses (the provision) charged to expense, which represents management s best estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgment of management, is necessary to provide for estimated loan losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio. The Bank s allowance for loan loss methodology includes allowance allocations calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 310, Receivables and allowance allocations calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 450, Contingencies. Accordingly, the methodology is based

on historical loss experience by type of credit and internal risk grade, homogeneous risk pools and specific loss allocations, with qualitative factor adjustments for current events and conditions. The allowance calculation also includes an estimated adjustment for a Loss Emergence Period, which improves the Bank s ability to more accurately forecast probable losses that may exist in the loan portfolio that have not yet emerged into problem loan status. The Bank s process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance is designed to account for credit deterioration as it occurs. The provision reflects loan quality trends, including the levels of and trends related to non-accrual loans, past due loans, potential problem loans, criticized loans, net charge-offs or recoveries, and the overall size of the loan portfolio, among other factors. The provision reflects not only the necessary increases in the allowance related to newly identified criticized loans, but it also reflects actions taken related to other loans including, among other things, any necessary increases or decreases in required allowances for specific loans or loan pools.

The level of the allowance reflects management s continuing evaluation of industry concentrations, specific credit risks, loan loss experience, current loan portfolio quality, present economic, political and regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. While management utilizes its best judgment and information available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowance is dependent upon a variety of factors beyond the Bank s control, including, among other things, the performance of the Bank s loan portfolio, the economy, changes in interest rates and the view of the regulatory authorities toward loan classifications.

The Bank s allowance for loan losses consists of three principal elements: (i) specific valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC Topic 310 based on probable losses on specific loans; (ii) historical valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC Topic 450 based on historical loan loss experience for similar loans with similar characteristics and trends, adjusted, as necessary, to reflect the impact of current conditions; and (iii) general valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC Topic 450 based on general economic conditions and other qualitative risk factors both internal and external to the Bank.

The allowances established for probable losses on specific loans are based on a regular analysis and evaluation of problem loans. Loans are classified based on an internal credit risk grading process that evaluates, among other things: (i) the obligor s ability to repay; (ii) the underlying collateral, if any; and (iii) the economic environment and industry in which the borrower operates. This analysis is performed at the relationship level for all commercial loans. When a loan has a classification of substandard or worse, the Bank analyzes the loan to determine whether the loan is impaired and, if impaired, the need to specifically allocate a portion of the allowance to the loan. Specific valuation allowances are determined by analyzing the borrower s ability to repay amounts contractually owed, collateral deficiencies, the relative risk grade of the loan and economic conditions affecting the borrower s industry, among other observable considerations.

Historical valuation allowances are calculated based on the historical loss experience of specific types of loans and the internal risk grade of such loans at the time they were charged-off. The Bank calculates historical loss ratios for pools of similar loans with similar characteristics based on the proportion of actual net charge-offs experienced to the total loan balance in the pool. The historical loss ratios are updated quarterly based on this net charge-off experience. A historical valuation allowance is established for each pool of similar loans based upon the product of the historical loss ratio and the total dollar amount of the loans in the pool, net of any loans for which reserves are already established. The Bank s pools of similar loans include similarly risk-graded groups of commercial real estate loans, commercial

and industrial loans, commercial construction and development loans, municipal loans, residential mortgage loans, consumer revolving loans, and consumer installment loans.

General valuation allowances are based on general economic conditions and other qualitative risk factors both internal and external to the Bank. In general, such valuation allowances are determined by evaluating, among other things: (i) changes in lending policies and procedures; (ii) economic and business conditions; (iii) changes in the volume and nature of the loan portfolio; (iv) experience, ability and depth of lending management and staff; (v) changes in asset quality and problem loan trends; (vi) quality of internal controls and effectiveness of loan review; (vii) concentrations of credit; (viii) external factors, including changes in competition, legal, and regulatory matters; and (ix) real estate market conditions and valuations of collateral. Management evaluates the degree of risk that each one of these components has on the quality of the loan portfolio on a quarterly basis. The results are then used to determine an appropriate general valuation allowance.

Loans identified as losses by management, external loan review and/or bank examiners, are charged-off. Furthermore, consumer loan accounts are charged-off based on regulatory requirements.

The following tables detail activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, and 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2014. The tables also provide details regarding the Bank s recorded investment in loans related to each balance in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Bank s impairment methodology. Allocation of a portion of the allowance to one category of loans does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other categories.

Three																	
Months			C	ommercial	Com	mercial											
Ended					Cons	truction											
	Con	nmercial		and					Res	idential	l		H	Iome	Tax		
September					and	d land											
30, 2015	Rea	al Estate	Ι	ndustrial	devel	lopment	Ag	gricultur	alRea	l Estate	Col	nsumer	E	quity	Exem	ot	Total
Beginning																	
Balance	\$	4,289	\$	1,147	\$	145	\$	372	\$	2,485	\$	110	\$	472	\$ `	79 \$	9,099
Charged Off		(461)		(22)				(54)				(23)		(25)	-		(585)
															-		
Recoveries		58		31				3				6					98
Provision		600		(49)		(12)		28		(182)		11		34	((5)	425
Ending																	
Balance	\$	4,486	\$	1,107	\$	133	\$	349	\$	2,303	\$	104	\$	481	\$	74 \$	9,037

Nine Months					Com	mercial											
Ended			Co	ommercial	Const	truction											
	Con	nmercial	l	and					Res	identia	l		H	Iome	Т	ax	
September					and	l land											
30, 2015	Rea	l Estate	I	ndustrial	devel	opment	Ag	ricultur	alRea	al Estato	eCo	nsumer	E	quity	Exe	mpt	Total
Beginning																	
Balance	\$	4,468	\$	929	\$	145	\$	277	\$	2,714	\$	94	\$	271	\$	71	\$ 8,969
Charged Off		(667)		(310)				(72)		(70)		(48)		(376)			(1,543)
Recoveries		97		33				15		129		17					291

Edgar Filing: BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES - Form 10-Q																	
Provision Ending		588		455		(12)		129		(470)		41		586		;	1,320
Balance	\$	4,486	\$	1,107	\$	133	\$	349	\$	2,303	\$	104	\$	481	\$ 74	\$	9,037
of which:																	
Amount for loans individually																	
evaluated for																	
impairment	\$	39	\$	176	\$	24	\$		\$	52	\$		\$		\$	\$	291
Amount for loans collectively																	
evaluated for																	
impairment	\$	4,447	\$	931	\$	109	\$	349	\$	2,251	\$	104	\$	481	\$ 74	\$	8,746
Loans individually evaluated for																	
impairment	\$	1,988	\$	437	\$ 1	1,260	\$	108	\$	1,650	\$	9	\$	18	\$	- \$	5,470
Loans collectively evaluated for																	
impairment	\$.	370,529	\$7	7,451	\$23	3,894	\$32	2,412	\$3	89,418	\$ 1	0,138	\$5	1,272	\$15,319	\$9	70,433

Three																	
Months					Com	mercial											
Ended			Co	ommercial	l Cons	truction											
	Con	nmercial		and					Re	sidential	l		H	[ome		Tax	
September	•				an	d land											
30, 2014	Rea	al Estate	I	ndustrial	deve	lopment	Ag	gricultur	alRe	al Estate	eCo	nsumer	E	quity	E	xempt	Total
Beginning																	
Balance	\$	4,887	\$	1,573	\$	254	\$	371	\$	1,149	\$	103	\$	241	\$	173 5	\$ 8,751
Charged																	
Off		(19)		(317)						(264)		(68)					(668)
Recoveries		34		1				11				14		1			61
Provision		(71)		150		77		(26)		275		97				(11)	491
Ending																	
Balance	\$	4,831	\$	1,407	\$	331	\$	356	\$	1,160	\$	146	\$	242	\$	162 \$	\$ 8,635

Nine																	
Months					Com	mercial											
Ended			Co	ommercial	l Cons	truction											
	Cor	nmercial		and					Re	sidentia	1		H	Iome	r.	Гах	
September					and	d land											
30, 2014	Rea	al Estate	Iı	ndustrial	devel	lopment	Ag	ricultura	lRe	al Estat	eCo	nsumer	Е	lquity	Ex	empt	Total
Beginning																	
Balance	\$	4,825	\$	1,266	\$	314	\$	335	\$	1,166	\$	137	\$	264	\$	168 \$	8,475
Charged																	
Off		(184)		(416)				(14)		(557)		(148)		(18)			(1,337)
Recoveries		40		13				26		12		29		1			121
Provision		150		544		17		9		539		128		(5)		(6)	1,376
Ending																	
Balance	\$	4,831	\$	1,407	\$	331	\$	356	\$	1,160	\$	146	\$	242	\$	162 \$	8,635

Twelve Months			Com	mercial		nmercial struction											
Ended	Co	mmercial		and	an	d land			Res	sidentia	I		H	[ome	r	Гах	
December 31,	,																
2014	Re	al Estate	Ind	ustrial	deve	lopment	Ag	gricultu	ralRea	al Estate	eCo	nsumer	E	quity	Ex	empt	Total
Beginning																	
Balance	\$	4,825	\$	1,266	\$	314	\$	335	\$	1,166	\$	137	\$	264	\$	168	\$ 8,475
Charged-off		(238)		(475)				(14)		(650)		(191)		(52)			(1,620)
Recoveries		85		16				130		12		37		1			281
Provision		(204)		122		(169)		(174)		2,186		111		58		(97)	1,833
Ending																	
Balance	\$	4,468	\$	929	\$	145	\$	277	\$	2,714	\$	94	\$	271	\$	71	\$ 8,969

of which:								
Amount for loans Individually								
evaluated for								
impairmen	ıt \$ 776	\$ 187	\$	\$	\$	\$ 1	\$ \$	\$ 964
Amount for loans collectively evaluated								
for impairment	\$ 3,692	\$ 742	\$ 145	\$ 277	\$ 2,714	\$ 93	\$ 271 \$ 71	\$ 8,005
Loans individually evaluated for								
impairment	\$ 3,592	\$ 634	\$ 1,328	\$ 181	\$ 389	\$ 10	\$ \$	\$ 6,134
Loans collectively evaluated for								
impairment	\$322,357	\$73,259	\$24,093	\$30,290	\$382,289	\$12,130	\$51,795 \$16,693	\$912,906

Loan Concentrations: Because of the Company s proximity to Acadia National Park, a large part of the economic activity in the Bank s area is generated from the hospitality business associated with tourism. At September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, loans to the lodging industry amounted to approximately \$99,805 and \$112,520, respectively.

Note 7: Reclassifications Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table summarizes the reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014.

Amount Reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

	Three Months		Affected Line Item in the Statement
Details about Accumulated		Nine Months	
Other Comprehensive Income	Ended 9/30/2015	Ended 9/30/2015	Where Net Income is Presented
Unrealized gains and losses on			
available-for-sale securities	\$	\$ 1,206	
Tax (expense) or benefit		(422)	Net securities gains
Net of tax	\$	\$ 784	Provision for income taxes Net income
Amortization of post retirement benefit plan			
Amortization of actuarial loss for			
supplemental executive retirement			
plan	(10)	(29)	Salaries and benefits
Tax (expense) or benefit	3	10	Provision for income taxes
Net of tax	\$(7)		Net income
Total reclassification for the period	\$ (7)	\$ 765	Net (loss) income, net of tax
			Affected Line Item in the Statement
Details about Accumulated	Three Months Ended	Nine Months	Where Net Income is
Other Comprehensive Income	9/30/2014	Ended 9/30/2014	
Unrealized gains and losses on			
available-for-sale securities	\$(81)	\$ 666	
Tax (expense) or benefit	28		Net securities gains
Net of tax	\$(53)	\$ 440	Provision for income taxes Net income

Amortization of post retirement benefit plan

Amortization of actuarial loss for

supplemental executive retirement				
plan	(16)	((21)	Salaries and benefits
Tax (expense) or benefit	5		7	Provision for income taxes
Net of tax	\$(11)	\$ ((14)	Net income
Total reclassification for the period	\$(64)	\$ 4	126	Net income, net of tax

Note 8: Financial Derivative Instruments

As part of its overall asset and liability management strategy, the Bank periodically uses derivative instruments to minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings and cash flows caused by interest rate volatility. The Bank s interest rate risk management strategy involves modifying the re-pricing characteristics of certain assets or liabilities so that changes in interest rates do not have a significant effect on net interest income.

The Company recognizes its derivative instruments on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. On the date the derivative instrument is entered into, the Bank designates whether the derivative is part of a hedging relationship (i.e., cash flow or fair value hedge). The Bank formally documents relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge transactions. The Bank also assesses, both at the hedge s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting the changes in cash flows or fair values of hedged items. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments that are highly effective and qualify as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income or loss. Any ineffective portion is recorded in earnings. The Bank discontinues hedge risk on the hedged item, or management determines that the designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

At September 30, 2015, the Bank had four outstanding derivative instruments with notional amounts totaling \$90,000. These derivative instruments were interest rate cap agreements. The notional amounts of the financial derivative instruments do not represent exposure to credit loss. The Bank is exposed to credit loss only to the extent the counter-party defaults in its responsibility to pay interest under the terms of the agreements. The credit risk in derivative instruments is mitigated by entering into transactions with highly-rated counterparties that management believes to be creditworthy and by limiting the amount of exposure to each counter-party. At September 30, 2015, the Bank is derivative instrument counterparties were credit rated AA by the major credit rating agencies.

The details of the Bank s financial derivative instruments as of September 30, 2015 are summarized below:

Interest Rate Cap Agreements

Unamortized

Notional		3-Month		Premium at	Fair Value	
Amount	Termination Date	LIBOR Strike Rate	Premium Paid	September 30, 2015	September 30, 2015	Cumulative Cash Flows Received
\$25,000	06/02/21	3.00%	\$ 922	\$ 921	\$ 327	\$
\$20,000	06/04/24	3.00%	\$ 1,470	\$ 1,470	\$ 688	\$
\$20,000	10/21/21	3.00%	\$ 632	\$ 632	\$ 297	\$
\$25,000	10/21/24	3.00%	\$ 1,542	\$ 1,542	\$ 939	\$

In 2014, interest rate cap agreements were purchased to limit the Bank s exposure to rising interest rates on four rolling, three-month borrowings indexed to three month LIBOR. Under the terms of the agreements, the Bank paid total premiums of \$4,566 for the right to receive cash flow payments if 3-month LIBOR rises above the caps of 3.00%, thus effectively ensuring interest expense on the borrowings at maximum rates of 3.00% for the duration of the agreements. The interest rate cap agreements were designated as cash flow hedges.

At September 30, 2015, the total fair value of the interest rate cap agreements was \$2,251, compared with \$3,455 at December 31, 2014. The fair values of the interest rate cap agreements are included in other assets on the Company s consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value, representing unrealized gains or losses, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax.

The premiums paid on the interest rate cap agreements are being recognized as increases in interest expense over the duration of the agreements using the caplet method. For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, less than \$1 of premium amortization was recorded. During the next twelve months, \$34 of the total premiums will be recognized as increases to interest expense, increasing the interest expense related to the hedged borrowings.

A summary of the hedging related balances as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 follows:

	Septemb	er 30, 2015
	Gross	Net of Tax
Unrealized losses on interest rate caps	\$(2,314)	\$(1,504)
Unamortized premium on interest rate caps	4,565	2,967
Total	\$ 2,251	\$ 1,463

	Decembe	er 31, 2014
	Gross	Net of Tax
Unrealized losses on interest rate caps	\$(1,111)	\$ (722)
Unamortized premium on interest rate caps	4,566	2,968
Total	\$ 3,455	\$2,246

Note 9: Retirement Benefit Plans

The Company has non-qualified supplemental executive retirement agreements with certain retired officers. The agreements provide supplemental retirement benefits payable in installments over a period of years upon retirement or death. The Company recognized the net present value of payments associated with the agreements over the service periods of the participating officers. Interest costs continue to be recognized on the benefit obligations.

The Company also has a supplemental executive retirement agreement with a certain current executive officer. This agreement provides a stream of future payments in accordance with a defined vesting schedule upon retirement, termination, or upon a change of control.

The following tables summarize the net periodic benefit costs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, and 2014:

	Supplemental Executive		
	Retirement Plans		
Three Months Ended September 30,	2015	2014	
Service cost	\$ 17	\$ 16	
Interest cost	32	37	
Actuarial loss on supplemental executive retirement plan, net of tax	7	7	
Net periodic benefit cost	\$ 56	\$ 60	

	Retirement Plans		
Nine Months Ended September 30,	2015	2014	
Service cost	\$ 53	\$ 48	
Interest cost	94	112	
Actuarial loss on supplemental executive retirement plan, net of tax	19	21	
Net periodic benefit cost	\$166	\$181	

Supplemental Executive

The Company is expected to recognize \$234 of expense for the foregoing plans for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Company is expected to contribute \$291 to the foregoing plans in 2015. As of September 30, 2015, the Company had contributed \$216.

Note 10: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Bank is a party to financial instruments in the normal course of business to meet financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, unused lines of credit, and standby letters of credit.

Commitments to originate loans, including unused lines of credit, are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank uses the same credit policy to make such commitments as it uses for on-balance-sheet items, such as loans. The Bank evaluates each customer s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management s credit evaluation of the borrower.

The Bank guarantees the obligations or performance of customers by issuing standby letters of credit to third parties. These standby letters of credit are primarily issued in support of third party debt or obligations. The risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers, and they are subject to the same credit origination, portfolio maintenance and management procedures in effect to monitor other credit and off-balance sheet instruments. Exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the counter-party to the financial instrument for standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. Typically, these standby letters of credit have terms of five years or less and expire unused; therefore, the total amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The following table summarizes the contractual amounts of commitments and contingent liabilities as of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014:

	September 30,	December 31,	
	2015	2014	
Commitments to originate loans	\$42,030	\$21,147	
Unused lines of credit	\$98,326	\$92,817	
Un-advanced portions of construction loans	\$14,857	\$23,434	
Standby letters of credit	\$ 385	\$ 325	

As of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, the fair value of the standby letters of credit was not significant to the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Note 11: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill: Goodwill totaled \$4,935 at September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014. In the third quarter of 2012 the Company recorded \$1,777 of goodwill in connection with the Bank s acquisition of substantially all of the assets and the assumption of certain liabilities including all deposits of the Border Trust Company.

Core Deposit Intangible Asset: The Company has a finite-lived intangible asset capitalized on its consolidated balance sheet in the form of a core deposit intangible asset related to the Border Trust Company acquisition. The core deposit intangible is being amortized over an estimated useful life of eight and one-half years and is included in other assets on the Company s consolidated balance sheet. At September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, the balance of the core deposit intangible asset amounted to \$493 and \$562, respectively.

September 30, December 31,

	2015	2014
Core deposit intangibles:		
Gross carrying amount	\$783	\$783
Less: accumulated amortization	290	221
Net carrying amount	\$493	\$562

Amortization expense on the finite-lived intangible assets is expected to total \$92 for each year from 2015 through 2020, then \$8 for 2021.

Note 12: Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The price

in the principal (or most advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and liabilities; it is not a forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are (i) independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact, and (iv) willing to transact.

The Company s fair value measurements employ valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or earnings, to a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the servicing capacity of an asset (replacement cost). Valuation techniques are consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The Company uses a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1 measurements) for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Valuation is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Valuation is based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-based techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3 Valuation is principally generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of discounted cash flow models and similar techniques.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The most significant instruments that the Company values are securities, all of which fall into Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The securities in the available for sale portfolio are priced by independent providers. In obtaining such valuation information from third parties, the Company has evaluated their valuation methodologies used to develop the fair values in order to determine whether valuations are appropriately placed within the fair value hierarchy and whether the valuations are representative of an exit price in the Company s principal markets. The Company s principal

markets for its securities portfolios are the secondary institutional markets, with an exit price that is predominantly reflective of bid level pricing in those markets. Additionally, the Company periodically tests the reasonableness of the prices provided by these third parties by obtaining fair values from other independent providers and by obtaining desk bids from a variety of institutional brokers.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below.

Securities Available for Sale: All securities and major categories of securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. For these securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from independent pricing providers. The fair value measurements used by the pricing providers consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market maker quotes and live trading systems. If quoted prices are not readily available, fair values are determined using matrix pricing models, or other model-based valuation techniques requiring observable inputs other than quoted prices such as market pricing spreads, credit information, callable features, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment speeds, default rates, and the securities terms and conditions, among other things.

The foregoing valuation methodologies may produce fair value calculations that may not be fully indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. While Company management believes these valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

The following tables summarize financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

September 30, 2015	Level 1 Inputs	Level 2 Inputs	Level 3 Inputs	Total Fair Value
Securities available for sale:	1	ł	1	
Mortgage-backed securities:				
US Government-sponsored enterprises	\$	\$302,566	\$	\$302,566
US Government agencies	\$	\$ 83,677	\$	\$ 83,677
Private label	\$	\$ 3,742	\$	\$ 3,742
Obligations of states and political subdivisions thereof	\$	\$112,695	\$	\$112,695
Derivative assets	\$	\$ 2,251	\$	\$ 2,251
December 31, 2014	Level 1 Inputs	Level 2 Inputs	Level 3 Inputs	Total Fair Value
Securities available for sale:				
Securities available for sale: Mortgage-backed securities:	Inputs	Inputs	Inputs	Value
Securities available for sale: Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-sponsored enterprises	Inputs \$	Inputs \$288,210	Inputs \$	Value \$288,210
Securities available for sale: Mortgage-backed securities:	Inputs \$ \$	Inputs \$288,210 \$ 83,346	Inputs \$ \$	Value \$288,210 \$ 83,346
Securities available for sale: Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-sponsored enterprises US Government agencies Private label	Inputs \$ \$ \$	Inputs \$288,210 \$ 83,346 \$ 4,524	Inputs \$ \$ \$	Value \$288,210 \$ 83,346 \$ 4,524
Securities available for sale: Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-sponsored enterprises US Government agencies	Inputs \$ \$	Inputs \$288,210 \$ 83,346	Inputs \$ \$	Value \$288,210 \$ 83,346

The following tables present the carrying value of certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value.

				Fair Value	
For the Nine Months Ended 9/30/15	Level 1 Inputs	Level 2 Inputs	Level 3 Inputs	as of 9/30/15	Loss
Other real estate owned Collateral dependent impaired loans	\$ \$	\$ \$	\$ 818 \$2,022	\$818 \$2,022	\$ 20 \$
				Fair Value	
For the Twelve Months Ended 12/31/14	Level 1 Inputs	Level 2 Inputs	Level 3 Inputs	as of 12/31/14	Loss
Other real estate owned Collateral dependent impaired loans	\$ \$	\$ \$	\$ 523 \$1,986	\$ 523 \$1,986	\$397 \$

The Company had total collateral dependent impaired loans with carrying values of \$2,022 and \$1,986 which had specific reserves included in the allowance of \$277 and \$776, at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The Company measures the value of collateral dependent impaired loans using Level 3 inputs. Specifically, the Company uses the appraised value of the collateral, which is then discounted for estimated costs to dispose and other considerations. These discounts generally range from 10% to 30% of appraised value.

In estimating the fair value of OREO, the Company generally uses market appraisals less estimated costs to dispose of the property, which generally range from 10% to 30% of appraised value. Management may also make adjustments to reflect estimated fair value declines, or may apply other discounts to appraised values for unobservable factors resulting from its knowledge of the property or consideration of broker quotes. The appraisers use a market, income, and/or a cost approach in determining the value of the collateral. Therefore they have been categorized as a Level 3 measurement.

There were no transfers between levels during the periods presented.

Note 13: Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company discloses fair value information about financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. Fair value estimates are made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant market information. Where available, quoted market prices are used. In other cases, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. These techniques involve uncertainties and are significantly affected by the assumptions used and judgments made regarding risk characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in certain cases, could not be realized in an immediate sale of the instrument.

Fair value estimates are based on existing financial instruments without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not purport to represent the underlying market value of the Company.

The following describes the methods and significant assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair values of significant financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For cash and cash equivalents, including cash and due from banks and other short-term investments with maturities of 90 days or less, the carrying amounts reported on the consolidated balance sheet approximate fair values.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock: For Federal Home Loan Bank stock, the carrying amounts report on the consolidated balance sheet approximate fair values.

Loans: For variable rate loans that re-price frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values. The fair value of other loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Deposits: The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is equal to the carrying amount. The fair value of time deposits is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows, applying interest rates currently being offered on wholesale funding products of similar maturities. The fair value estimates for deposits do not include the benefit that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to the cost of alternative forms of funding (deposit base intangibles).

Borrowings: For borrowings that mature or re-price in 90 days or less, carrying value approximates fair value. The fair value of the Company s remaining borrowings is estimated by using discounted cash flows based on current rates available for similar types of borrowing arrangements taking into account any optionality.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable: The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable and payable approximate their fair values.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments: The Company s off-balance sheet instruments consist of loan commitments and standby letters of credit. Fair values for standby letters of credit were insignificant.

A summary of the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company s significant financial instruments at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, follows:

					Total
September 30, 2015	Carrying Value	Level 1 Inputs	Level 2 Inputs	Level 3 Inputs	Fair Value
Financial Assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 12,336	\$12,336	\$	\$	\$ 12,336
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	23,593		23,593		23,593
Loans, net	966,913		968,543		968,543
Interest receivable	5,025		5,025		5,025
Financial liabilities:					
Deposits (with no stated maturity)	\$538,664	\$	\$538,664	\$	\$538,664
Time deposits	472,230		474,426		474,426
Borrowings	395,606		396,756		396,756
Interest payable	483		483		483

		Level 1	Level 2		Total
December 31, 2014	Carrying Value	Inputs	Inputs	Level 3 Inputs	Fair Value
Financial Assets:	¢ 0.000	\$0,000	¢	¢	¢ 0.000
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 9,800	\$9,800	\$	\$	\$ 9,800
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	21,354		21,354		21,354
Loans, net	910,055		913,784		913,784
Interest receivable	4,795		4,975		4,795
Financial liabilities:					
Deposits (with no stated maturity)	\$479,986	\$	\$479,986	\$	\$479,986
Time deposits	378,063		379,132		379,132
Borrowings	447,020		447,637		447,637
Interest payable	499		499		499

Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management s discussion and analysis, which follows, focuses on the factors affecting the Company s consolidated results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, and financial condition at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and where appropriate, factors that may affect future financial performance. The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, and selected financial and statistical information appearing elsewhere in this report on Form 10-Q.

Amounts in the prior period financial statements are reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current period presentation.

Unless otherwise noted, all dollars are expressed in thousands except share data.

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures: Certain information discussed below is presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis. Specifically, included in interest income in the third quarter of 2015 and 2014 was \$1,029 and \$987 respectively, of tax-exempt interest income from certain investment securities and loans. For the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the amount of tax exempt income included in interest income was \$2,821 and \$2,978, respectively.

An amount equal to the tax benefit derived from this tax exempt income has been added back to the interest income totals discussed in certain sections of this Management s Discussion and Analysis, representing tax equivalent adjustments of \$522 and \$475 in the third quarter of 2015 and 2014, respectively, and \$1,426 and \$1,429 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which increased net interest income accordingly. The analysis of net interest income tables included in this report on Form 10-Q provide a reconciliation of tax equivalent financial information to the Company's consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management believes the disclosure of tax equivalent net interest income information improves the clarity of financial analysis, and is particularly useful to investors in understanding and evaluating the changes and trends in the Company's results of operations. Other financial institutions commonly present net interest income on a tax equivalent basis. This adjustment is considered helpful in the comparison of one financial institution's net interest income to that of another institution, as each will have a different proportion of tax-exempt interest from their earning asset portfolios. Moreover, net interest income is a component of a second financial measure commonly used by financial institutions, net interest margin,

which is the ratio of net interest income to average earning assets. For purposes of this measure as well, other financial institutions generally use tax equivalent net interest income to provide a better basis of comparison from institution to institution. The Company follows these practices.

The Company presents its efficiency ratio using non-GAAP information. The GAAP efficiency ratio is computed by dividing non-interest expense by the sum of tax-equivalent net interest income and non-interest income. The non-GAAP efficiency ratio presented in this press release is computed by dividing non-interest expense by the sum of tax-equivalent net interest income and non-interest income other than net securities gains and OTTI, and other significant non-recurring expenses.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS DISCLAIMER

Certain statements, as well as certain other discussions contained in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, or incorporated herein by reference, contain statements which may be considered to be forward-looking within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Readers can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words like "strategy," "expects," "plans," "believes," "will," "estimates," "intends," "projects," "goals," "targets," and other words of similar meaning. Readers can also identify them by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts.

Investors are cautioned that forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those made in connection with estimates with respect to the future results of operation, financial condition, and the business of the Company which are subject to change based on the impact of various factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected or suggested due to certain risks and uncertainties. Those factors include but are not limited to:

- (i) The Company's success is dependent to a significant extent upon general economic conditions in Maine, and Maine's ability to attract new business, as well as factors that affect tourism, a major source of economic activity in the Company s immediate market areas;
- (ii) The Company's earnings depend to a great extent on the level of net interest income (the difference between interest income earned on loans and investments and the interest expense paid on deposits and borrowings) generated by the Company s wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Bar Harbor Bank & Trust (the Bank), and thus the Company s results of operations may be adversely affected by increases or decreases in interest rates;
- (iii) The banking business is highly competitive and the profitability of the Company depends on the Bank's ability to attract loans and deposits in Maine, where the Bank competes with a variety of traditional banking and non-traditional institutions, such as credit unions and finance companies;

A significant portion of the Bank's loan portfolio is comprised of commercial loans and loans secured by real estate, exposing the Company to the risks inherent in financings based upon analysis of credit risk, the value of underlying collateral, and other intangible factors which are considered in making commercial loans and, accordingly, the Company's profitability may be negatively impacted by judgment errors in risk analysis, by loan defaults, and the ability of certain borrowers to repay such loans during a downturn in general economic conditions;

- (v) Adverse changes in repayment performance and fair value of underlying residential mortgage loan collateral, that differ from the Company s current estimates, could change the Company s expectations that it will recover the amortized cost of its private label mortgage backed securities portfolio and/or its conclusion that such securities were not other-than temporarily impaired as of the date of this report;
- (vii) Significant changes in the Company s internal controls, or internal control failures;
- (viii) Acts or threats of terrorism and actions taken by the United States or other governments as a result of such threats, including military action, could further adversely affect business and economic conditions in the United States generally and in the Company s markets, which could have an adverse effect on the Company s financial performance and that of borrowers and on the financial markets and the price of the Company s common stock;
 - (ix) Significant changes in the extensive laws, regulations, and policies governing bank holding companies and their subsidiaries could alter the Company's business environment or affect its operations;
 - (x) Changes in general, national, international, regional or local economic conditions and credit markets which are less favorable than those anticipated by Company management that could impact the Company's securities portfolio, quality of credits, or the overall demand for the Company's products or services;
 - (xi) The integrity of information systems are under significant threat from cyber attacks by third-parties, including thorough coordinated attacks sponsored by foreign nations and criminal organizations to disrupt business operations and other compromises to data and systems for political or criminal purposes; and
- (xii) The Company s success in managing the risks involved in all of the foregoing matters.

Readers should carefully review all of these factors as well as the risk factors set forth in Item 1A- Risk Factors, contained in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. There may be other risk factors that could cause differences in future periods from those anticipated by management.

The forward-looking statements contained herein represent the Company's judgment as of the date of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and the Company cautions readers not to place undue reliance on such statements. The Company disclaims any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement contained in the succeeding discussion, or elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, except to the extent required by federal securities laws.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company s significant accounting policies are more fully enumerated in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of its December 31, 2014, report on Form 10-K. The reader of the financial statements should review these policies to gain a greater understanding of how the Company s financial performance is reported.

Management s discussion and analysis of the Company s financial condition and results of operations are based on the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of such financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Management evaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis in making judgments about the carrying values of assets that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from the amount derived from management s estimates and assumptions under different assumptions or conditions. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, other than temporary impairment on securities, income tax estimates, and the evaluation of intangible assets. The use of these estimates is more fully described in Part I, Item 1, Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL RESULTS

On April 22, 2014, the Company s Board of Directors declared a three-for-two split of its common stock, effectuated as a large stock dividend, which was paid on May 19, 2014 (the payment date) to all stockholders of record at the close of business on May 5, 2014. As of April 22, 2014, the Company had approximately 3,944,290 shares of common stock outstanding. After the stock split as a large stock dividend, the number of shares of Company common stock outstanding increased to 5,916,435. All previously reported share and per share data included in public filings subsequent to the payment date has been restated to reflect the retroactive effect of this three-for-two stock split.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, the Company reported net income of \$3,931, compared with \$3,867 for the third quarter of 2014, representing an increase of \$64, or 1.7%. The Company s diluted earnings per share amounted to \$0.65 for the quarter, unchanged compared with the third quarter of 2014. The Company s annualized return on average shareholders equity amounted to 10.32% for the quarter, compared with 10.98% in the third quarter of 2014. The Company s third quarter return on average assets amounted to 0.98%, compared with 1.06% in the third quarter of 2014.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Company reported net income of \$11,685, compared with \$11,511 for the same period in 2014, representing an increase of \$174, or 1.5%. The Company s diluted earnings per share amounted to \$1.93 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, unchanged compared with the same period in 2014. The Company s annualized return on average shareholders equity amounted to 10.40%, compared with 11.50% for the first nine months of 2014. The Company s return on average assets amounted to 1.02% for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, compared with 1.09% for the same period in 2014.

As more fully enumerated in the following management discussion and analysis, the Company s year-to-date operating results were highlighted by a \$777, or 2.3% increase in tax-equivalent net interest income, despite a fifteen basis point decline in the tax-equivalent net interest margin compared with the first nine months of 2014. Led by a \$540 increase in realized securities gains, total non-interest income increased \$648, or 10.4%, compared with the nine months ended September 30, 2014. The Company continued to focus on the management of its operating expenses, posting a year-to-date efficiency ratio of 55.5%.

Led by growth in the loan and securities portfolios as well as the purchase of bank owned life insurance, total assets stood at \$1,567,921 at quarter end, representing an increase of \$108,601 or 7.4% compared with December 31, 2014. Total loans ended the second quarter at \$975,950, representing an increase of \$56,926, or 6.2%, compared with December 31, 2014. The credit quality of the loan portfolio remained relatively stable during the first nine months of 2015, highlighted by a \$5,255, or 42.8%, decline in non-performing loans compared with December 31, 2014.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the principal component of the Company's income stream and represents the difference or spread between interest generated from earning assets and the interest expense paid on deposits and borrowed funds. Net interest income is entirely generated by the Bank. Fluctuations in market interest rates as well as volume and mix changes in earning assets and interest bearing liabilities can materially impact net interest income.

Total Net Interest Income: For the three months ended September 30, 2015, net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis amounted to \$12,218, compared with \$11,852 for the third quarter of 2014, representing an increase of \$366, or 3.1%. The increase in third quarter 2015 tax-equivalent net interest income compared with the third quarter of 2014 was attributed to average earning asset growth of \$122,624, or 8.8%, as the tax-equivalent net interest margin declined eighteen basis points.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis amounted to \$35,006, compared with \$34,229 for the same period in 2014, representing an increase of \$777, or 2.3%. The increase in tax-equivalent net interest income compared with the first nine months of 2014 was attributed to average earning asset growth of \$97,811, or 7.2%, as the tax-equivalent net interest margin declined fifteen basis points.

Factors contributing to the changes in net interest income and the net interest margin are more fully enumerated in the following discussion and analysis.

Net Interest Income Analysis: The following tables summarize the Company s average balance sheets and components of net interest income, including a reconciliation of tax-equivalent adjustments, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, and 2014:

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND

ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME

THREE MONTHS ENDED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

			2015			2014	
				Weighted			Weighted
	Av	verage		Average	Average		Average
	Ba	alance	Interest	Rate	Balance	Interest	Rate
Interest Earning Assets:							
Loans (1,3)	\$	990,549	\$10,187	4.08%	\$ 899,887	\$10,078	4.44%
Securities (2,3)	4	498,347	4,470	3.56%	468,645	4,132	3.50%
Federal Home Loan Bank stock		23,593	191	3.21%	21,333	71	1.32%
Total Earning Assets	1,5	12,489	14,848	3.89%	1,389,865	14,281	4.08%
Non-Interest Earning Assets:							
Cash and due from banks		6,585			4,744		
Allowance for loan losses		(9,142)			(8,660))	
Other assets (2)		76,958			60,430		
Total Assets	\$1,5	86,890			\$1,446,379		
Interest Bearing Liabilities:							
Deposits	\$8	99,980	\$ 1,596	0.70%	\$ 797,564	\$ 1,477	0.73%
Borrowings	4	40,612	1,034	0.93%	426,727	952	0.89%
Total Interest Bearing Liabilities	1,3	40,592	2,630	0.78%	1,224,291	2,429	0.79%
Rate Spread				3.11%			3.29%
Non-Interest Bearing Liabilities:							
Demand and other non-interest bearing							
deposits		88,136			75,399		
Other liabilities		6,971			6,977		
Total Liabilities	1,4	35,699			1,306,667		
Shareholders' equity	1	51,191			139,712		
Total Liabilities and Shareholders'							
Equity	\$1,5	86,890			\$1,446,379		

Net interest income and net interest				
margin (3)	12,218	3.20%	11,852	3.38%
Less: Tax Equivalent adjustment	(522)		(475)	
Net Interest Income	\$11,696	3.07%	\$11,377	3.25%

(1) For purposes of these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loans.

(2) For purposes of these computations, unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other assets.

(3) For purposes of these computations, net interest income and net interest margin are reported on a tax-equivalent basis.

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND

ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME

NINE MONTHS ENDED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

		2015			2014	
			Weighted			Weighted
	Average		Average	Average		Average
	Balance	Interest	Rate	Balance	Interest	Rate
Interest Earning Assets:	* * * * * * *	***		*	***	
Loans (1,3)	\$ 959,560	\$29,633	4.13%	\$ 874,701	-	4.35%
Securities (2,3)	481,695	12,744	3.54%	471,878	12,951	3.67%
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	22,971	380	2.21%	19,836	209	1.41%
Total Earning Assets	1,464,226	42,757	3.90%	1,366,415	41,627	4.07%
Non-Interest Earning Assets:						
Cash and due from banks	4,921			4,128		
Allowance for loan losses	(9,242)			(8,701)		
Other assets (2)	76,040			54,456		
Total Assets	\$1,535,945			\$1,416,298		
Interest Bearing Liabilities: Deposits Borrowings Total Interest Bearing Liabilities Rate Spread	\$ 828,529 471,274 1,299,803	\$ 4,509 3,242 7,751	0.73% 0.92% 0.80% 3.10%	\$ 801,850 405,828 1,207,678	\$ 4,376 3,022 7,398	0.73% 1.00% 0.82% 3.25%
Non-Interest Bearing Liabilities:						
Demand and other non-interest bearing						
deposits	78,933			68,049		
Other liabilities	6,930			6,775		
Total Liabilities	1,385,666			1,282,502		
Shareholders' equity	150,279			133,796		
Total Liabilities and Shareholders'						
Equity	\$1,535,945			\$1,416,298		
Net interest income and net interest				. , .,_,_,		
margin (3)		35,006	3.20%		34,229	3.35%
Less: Tax Equivalent adjustment		(1,426)	-		(1,429)	
Net Interest Income		\$33,580	3.07%		\$32,800	3.21%

(1) For purposes of these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loans.

(2) For purposes of these computations, unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other assets.

(3) For purposes of these computations, net interest income and net interest margin are reported on a tax-equivalent basis.

Net Interest Margin: The net interest margin, expressed on a tax equivalent basis, represents the difference between interest and dividends earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid to depositors and other creditors, expressed as a percentage of average earning assets.

The net interest margin is determined by dividing tax equivalent net interest income by average interest-earning assets. The interest rate spread represents the difference between the average tax equivalent yield earned on interest earning-assets and the average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities. The net interest margin is generally higher than the interest rate spread due to the additional income earned on those assets funded by non-interest bearing liabilities, primarily demand deposits and shareholders equity.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, the tax equivalent net interest margin amounted to 3.20%, compared with 3.38% in the third quarter of 2014, representing a decline of eighteen basis points. The decline in the net interest margin was attributed to a nineteen basis point decline in the weighted average yield on earning assets, partially offset by a one basis point decline in the weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities, compared with the third quarter of 2014.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the tax equivalent net interest margin amounted to 3.20%, compared with 3.35% for the same period in 2014, representing a decline of fifteen basis points. The decline in the net interest margin was attributed to a seventeen basis point decline in the weighted average yield on earning assets, partially offset by a two basis point decline in the weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities, compared with the first nine months of 2014.

The following table summarizes the net interest margin components, on a quarterly basis, over the past two years. Factors contributing to the changes in the net interest margin are further enumerated in the following discussion and analysis.

NET INTEREST MARGIN ANALYSIS

FOR QUARTER ENDED

WEIGHTED AVERAGE								
RATES		2015			20	14		2013
Quarter:	3	2	1	4	3	2	1	4
Interest Earning Assets:								
Loans (1,3)	4.08%	4.08%	4.23%	4.19%	4.44%	4.26%	4.35%	4.33%
Securities (2,3)	3.56%	3.43%	3.63%	3.74%	3.50%	3.77%	3.75%	3.61%
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	3.21%	1.63%	1.74%	1.50%	1.32%	1.43%	1.49%	0.37%
Total Earning Assets	3.89%	3.83%	3.99%	4.00%	4.08%	4.05%	4.10%	4.03%
Interest Bearing Liabilities:								
Deposits	0.70%	0.73%	0.75%	0.75%	0.73%	0.73%	0.73%	0.82%
Borrowings	0.93%	0.90%	0.93%	0.96%	0.89%	0.99%	1.12%	1.15%
Total Interest Bearing								
Liabilities	0.78%	0.80%	0.82%	0.82%	0.79%	0.82%	0.85%	0.93%
Rate Spread	3.11%	3.03%	3.17%	3.18%	3.29%	3.23%	3.25%	3.10%
Net Interest Margin (3)	3.20%	3.12%	3.27%	3.28%	3.38%	3.32%	3.34%	3.21%
Net Interest Margin without								
Tax Equivalent Adjustments	3.07%	2.99%	3.14%	3.15%	3.25%	3.18%	3.20%	3.07%

(1) For purposes of these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loans.

(2) For purposes of these computations, unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other assets.

(3) For purposes of these computations, net interest income and net interest margin are reported on a tax-equivalent basis.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, the weighted average yield on average earning assets amounted to 3.89%, compared with 4.08% in the third quarter of 2014, representing a decline of nineteen basis points. As more fully discussed below, this decline was attributed to a lower weighted average yield on the Bank s loan portfolio, which declined thirty-six basis points compared with the third quarter of 2014. The decline in the weighted average loan yield was partially offset by a six basis point increase in the weighted average yield on securities.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the weighted average yield on average earning assets amounted to 3.90%, compared with 4.07% for the same period in 2014, representing a decline of seventeen basis points. As more fully discussed below, this decline was attributed to lower yields on the Bank s loan and securities portfolios which declined twenty-two and thirteen basis points, respectively, compared with the first nine months of 2014.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, the weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities amounted to 0.78% and 0.80%, compared with 0.79% and 0.82% for the same periods in 2014, representing a declines of one and two basis points, respectively. As more fully discussed below, these declines principally reflected the ongoing re-pricing of maturing borrowings at historically low interest rates.

Interest and Dividend Income: For the three months ended September 30, 2015, total interest and dividend income on a tax-equivalent basis amounted to \$14,848, compared with \$14,281 in the third quarter of 2014, representing an increase of \$567, or 4.0%. The increase in interest and dividend income was attributed to average earning asset growth of \$122,624, or 8.8%, as the weighted average earning asset yield declined nineteen basis points to 3.89%.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, total tax-equivalent interest income from the securities portfolio amounted to \$4,470, representing an increase of \$338, or 8.2%, compared with the third quarter of 2014. The increase in interest income from securities was principally attributed to a \$29,702, or 6.3%, increase in total average securities, combined with a six basis point increase in the weighted average securities yield to 3.56%. The increase in the weighted average securities yield largely reflected higher levels of MBS purchase discount accretion during the current quarter compared with the same quarter in 2014.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, total tax-equivalent interest income from the loan portfolio amounted to \$10,187, representing an increase of \$109, or 1.1%, compared with the third quarter of 2014. The increase in interest income from loans was principally attributed to a \$90,662, or 10.1% increase in the average loan portfolio, which was almost entirely offset by a thirty-six basis point decline in the weighted average loan yield to 4.08%. The decline in the weighted average loan yield principally reflected the origination and competitive re-pricing of certain commercial loans, as well as residential mortgage loan origination and refinancing activity, during a period of still-historically low interest rates.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, total interest and dividend income on a tax-equivalent basis amounted to \$42,757, compared with \$41,627 for the same period in 2014, representing an increase of \$1,130, or 2.7%. The increase in interest and dividend income was attributed to average earning asset growth of \$97,811, or 7.2%, as the weighted average earning asset yield declined seventeen basis points to 3.90%.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, total tax-equivalent interest income from the securities portfolio amounted to \$12,744, representing a decline of \$207, or 1.6%, compared with the first nine months of 2014. The decline in interest income from securities was principally attributed to a thirteen basis point decline in the weighted average securities portfolio yield to 3.54%, partially offset by a \$9,817 or 2.1% increase in total average securities, compared with the same period in 2014. The decline in the weighted average securities yield was principally attributed to the ongoing replacement of MBS cash flows in a still- historically low interest rate environment.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, total tax-equivalent interest income from the loan portfolio amounted to \$29,633, representing an increase of \$1,166, or 4.1%, compared with the first nine months of 2014. The increase in interest income from loans was principally attributed to an \$84,859, or 9.7% increase in the weighted average loan portfolio, largely offset by a twenty-two basis point decline in the weighted average loan yield to 4.13%. The decline in the weighted average loan yield principally reflected the origination and competitive re-pricing of certain commercial loans, as well as residential mortgage loan origination and refinancing activity, during a period of still-historically low interest rates.

Interest Expense: For the three months ended September 30, 2015, total interest expense amounted to \$2,630, compared with \$2,429 in the third quarter of 2014, representing an increase of \$201, or 8.3%. The increase in interest expense was principally attributed to an \$116,301 or 9.5% increase in total average interest bearing liabilities, partially offset by a one basis point decline in the weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities, compared with the third quarter of 2014.

The decline in the third quarter weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities compared with the same quarter in 2014 was principally attributed to prevailing, historically low short-term and long-term market interest rates with deposits being added or replaced at a lower cost. For the three months ended September 30, 2015, the total weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities amounted to 0.78%, compared with 0.79% in the third quarter of 2014. The weighted average cost of borrowed funds increased four basis points to 0.93%, while the weighted average cost of interest bearing deposits declined three basis points to 0.70%, compared with the third quarter of 2014.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, total interest expense amounted to \$7,751, compared with \$7,398 for the same period in 2014, representing an increase of \$353, or 4.8%. The increase in interest expense was principally attributed to a \$92,125, or 7.6%, increase in total average interest bearing liabilities, partially offset by a two basis point decline in the weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities, compared with the first nine months of 2014.

The decline in the weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities compared with the first nine months of 2014 was principally attributed to prevailing, historically low short-term and long-term market interest rates with borrowings and deposits being added or replaced at a lower cost. For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the total weighted average cost of interest bearing liabilities amounted to 0.80%, compared with 0.82% for the same period in 2014. The weighted average cost of borrowed funds declined eight basis points to 0.92%, while the weighted average cost of interest bearing deposits was unchanged at 0.73%.

Rate/Volume Analysis: The following tables set forth a summary analysis of the relative impact on net interest income of changes in the average volume of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities, and changes in average rates on such assets and liabilities. The income from tax-exempt assets has been adjusted to a fully tax equivalent basis, thereby allowing uniform comparisons to be made. Because of the numerous simultaneous volume and rate changes during the periods analyzed, it is not possible to precisely allocate changes to volume or rate. For presentation purposes, changes which are not solely due to volume changes or rate changes have been allocated to these categories in proportion to the relationships of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

ANALYSIS OF VOLUME AND RATE CHANGES ON NET INTEREST INCOME

THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 and 2014

INCREASES (DECREASES) DUE TO:

	Average	Average	Total
	Volume	Rate	Change
Loans (1,3)	\$1,011	\$(902)	\$109
Securities (2,3)	262	76	338
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	8	112	120
TOTAL EARNING ASSETS	\$1,281	\$(714)	\$567

Interest bearing deposits	190	(71)	119
Borrowings	31	51	82
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES	\$ 221	\$ (20)	\$201
	\$1,060	\$(694)	\$366

(1) For purposes of these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loans.

(2) For purposes of these computations, unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other assets.

(3) For purposes of these computations, interest income is reported on a tax-equivalent basis.

ANALYSIS OF VOLUME AND RATE CHANGES ON NET INTEREST INCOME

NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 and 2014

INCREASES (DECREASES) DUE TO:

	Average	Average	Total
	Volume	Rate	Change
Loans (1,3)	\$2,759	\$(1,593)	\$1,166
Securities (2,3)	270	(477)	(207)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	33	138	171
TOTAL EARNING ASSETS	\$3,062	\$(1,932)	\$1,130
Interest bearing deposits	145	(12)	133
Borrowings	487	(267)	220
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES	\$ 632	\$ (279)	\$ 353
NET CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME	\$2,430	\$(1,653)	\$ 777

(1) For purposes of these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loans.

(2) For purposes of these computations, unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other assets.

(3) For purposes of these computations, interest income is reported on a tax-equivalent basis.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses (the provision) reflects the amount necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level that, in management s judgment, is appropriate for the amount of inherent risk of probable loss in the Bank s current loan portfolio.

The overall credit quality of the Bank s loan portfolio remained relatively stable during the nine months ended September 30, 2015, with non-performing loans posting a significant decline from year-end 2014. Total non-performing loans amounted to \$7,033 at September 30, 2015, compared with \$12,288 at December 31, 2014, representing a decline of \$5,255, or 42.8%. Total non-performing loans expressed as a percentage of total loans ended the quarter at 0.72%, down from 1.34% at December 31, 2014. Similarly, the allowance for loan losses expressed as a ratio to non-performing loans ended the quarter at 128.5%, up from 73.0% at December 31, 2014.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, total net loan charge-offs amounted to \$1,252, or annualized net charge-offs to average loans outstanding of 0.17%, compared with \$1,216 and 0.19%, respectively, during the first nine months of 2014.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Bank recorded provisions of \$425 and \$1,320, compared with \$491 and \$1,376 for the same periods in 2014, representing declines of \$66 and \$56, or 13.4% and 4.1%, respectively. The foregoing provisions were largely driven by year-to date loan growth of \$56,926.

Refer below to Item 2 of this Part I, Financial Condition, Loans, *Non-Performing Loans, Potential Problem Loans* and *Allowance for Loan Losses*, in this report on Form 10-Q for further discussion and analysis related to the provision for loan losses.

Non-interest Income

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total non-interest income amounted to \$2,028 and \$6,873, compared with \$1,816 and \$6,225 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$212 and \$648, or 11.7% and 10.4%, respectively.

Factors contributing to the changes in non-interest income are enumerated in the following discussion and analysis.

Trust and Other Financial Services: Income from trust and other financial services is principally derived from fee income based on a percentage of the fair market value of client assets under management and held in custody with Bar Harbor Trust Services, the Company second tier non-depository trust company subsidiary, and, to a lesser extent, revenue from brokerage services conducted through Bar Harbor Financial Services, an independent third-party broker.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, trust and other financial service fees amounted to \$957, compared with \$954 in the third quarter of 2014, representing an increase of \$3, or 0.3%. For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, trust and other financial service fees amounted to \$2,887, compared with \$3,028 for the same period in 2014, representing a decline of \$151, or 5.0%. This decline was attributed to lower levels of revenue from retail brokerage activities. At September 30, 2015 total assets under management stood at \$370,590, compared with \$394,949 at December 31, 2014, representing a decline of \$24,359, or 6.2%. The decline in assets under management was attributed to broad declines in the equities market since year end 2014.

Service Charges on Deposit Accounts: Service charges on deposits are principally derived from customer overdraft fees. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, income from service charges on deposit accounts amounted to \$224 and \$677, compared with \$245 and \$747 for the same periods in 2014, representing declines of \$21 and \$70, or 8.6% and 9.4%, respectively. The Bank has not been aggressive in selling its fee based overdraft products as a cautionary measure in light of continued regulatory pressure on the banking industry including the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, which was established by the Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the Dodd Frank Act).

Debit Card Service Charges and Fees: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, income generated from debit card service charges and fees amounted to \$477 and \$1,245, compared with \$436 and \$1,156 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$41 and \$89, or 9.4% and 7.7%, respectively. These increases were attributed to continued growth of the Bank s retail deposit base and continued success with a program that offers rewards for certain debit card transactions.

Net Securities Gains: For the three months ended September 30, 2015, the Bank recorded no realized securities gains, compared with realized securities losses of \$81 for the third quarter of 2014. For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Bank recorded realized securities gains of \$1,206, compared with \$666 for the same period in 2014, representing an increase of \$540, or 81.1%. The realized securities gains largely reflected Bank management s strategy of lowering the duration of the securities portfolio and its overall interest rate risk profile, while simultaneously generating income.

Other Operating Income: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total other operating income amounted to \$370 and \$858, compared with \$262 and \$628 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$108 and \$230, or 41.2% and 36.6%, respectively, compared with the same periods in 2014. The increases in other

operating income were principally attributed to the Bank s purchase of Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) during the first quarter of this year. Further information regarding BOLI is incorporated by reference to the below *Financial Condition* management discussion and analysis covering *Bank Owned Life Insurance* in this report on Form 10-Q.

Non-interest Expense

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total non-interest expense amounted to \$7,820 and \$22,754, compared with \$7,212 and \$21,419 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$608 and \$1,335, or 8.4% and 6.2%, respectively.

Factors contributing to the changes in non-interest expense are more fully enumerated in the following discussion and analysis.

Salaries and Employee Benefits: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total salaries and employee benefits expense amounted to \$4,623 and \$13,244, compared with \$4,249 and \$12,448 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$374 and \$796, or 8.8% and 6.4%, respectively. The increases in salaries and employee benefits were attributed to a variety of factors including normal increases in base salaries and higher levels of employee health insurance, higher levels of employee incentive and equity compensation, as well as increases in staffing levels and strategic changes in staffing mix.

Occupancy Expense: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total occupancy expense amounted to \$550 and \$1,697, compared with \$508 and \$1,616 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$42 and \$81, or 8.3% and 5.0%, respectively. These increases were largely attributed to higher levels of building and grounds maintenance expense, including snow removal earlier in the year.

Furniture and Equipment Expense: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total furniture and equipment expense amounted to \$584 and \$1,729, compared with \$569 and \$1,606 for the same periods in 2014 representing increases of \$15 and \$123, or 2.6% and 7.7%, respectively. These increases were largely attributed to a variety of technology upgrades and certain new technology systems and applications.

Other Operating Expenses: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total other operating expenses amounted to \$1,732 and \$5,134, compared with \$1,610 and \$4,911 for the same periods in 2014, representing increases of \$122 and \$223, or 7.6% and 4.5%, respectively. These increases were attributed to a variety of expense categories including professional services, and shareholder related expenses.

Efficiency Ratio

The Company s efficiency ratio measures the relationship of operating expenses to revenues. The efficiency ratio is calculated by dividing non-interest operating expenses by the sum of tax-equivalent net interest income and

non-interest income other than net securities gains, other-than-temporary impairments, and other significant non-recurring expenses. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Company s efficiency ratios amounted to 54.4% and 55.5%, compared with 52.2% and 53.5% for the same periods in 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, total income taxes amounted to \$1,548 and \$4,694, compared with \$1,623 and \$4,719 for the same periods in 2014, representing declines of \$75 and \$25, or 4.6% and 0.5%, respectively.

The Company's effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 amounted to 28.3% and 28.7%, compared with 29.6% and 29.1% for the same periods in 2014, respectively. The income tax provisions for these periods were less than the expense that would result from applying the federal statutory rate of 35% to income before income taxes, principally because of the impact of tax exempt interest income on certain investment securities, loans and bank owned life insurance. Fluctuations in the Company s effective tax rate are generally attributed to changes in the relationship between non-taxable income and non-deductible expense, and income before income taxes, during any given reporting period.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total Assets

The Company s assets principally consist of loans and securities, which at September 30, 2015, represented 62.2% and 32.1%, respectively, of total assets, compared with 63.0% and 32.2%, respectively, at December 31, 2014.

At September 30, 2015, the Company s total assets stood at \$1,567,921, compared with \$1,459,320 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$108,601, or 7.4%.

Securities

The securities portfolio is comprised of mortgage-backed securities (MBS) issued by U.S. Government agencies, U.S. Government sponsored enterprises and, to a much lesser extent, other non-agency, private label issuers. The portfolio also includes tax-exempt obligations of state and political subdivisions.

Management considers securities as a relatively attractive means to effectively leverage the Bank s strong capital position, as securities are typically assigned significantly lower risk weightings compared with the Bank s other earning assets for the purpose of calculating the Bank s and the Company s risk-based capital ratios. The overall objectives of the Company s strategy for the securities portfolio include maintaining appropriate liquidity reserves, diversifying earning assets, managing interest rate risk, leveraging the Company s strong capital position, and generating acceptable levels of net interest income.

Securities available for sale represented 100% of total securities at September 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014. Securities available for sale are reported at their fair value with unrealized gains or losses, net of taxes, excluded from earnings but shown separately as a component of shareholders equity. At September 30, 2015, total net unrealized securities gains amounted to \$12,203, compared with net unrealized gains of \$12,155 at December 31, 2014. The

unrealized gains at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were attributed to market interest rates, which declined significantly since the date the securities were purchased.

Total Securities: At September 30, 2015, total securities amounted to \$502,680, compared with \$470,525 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$32,155, or 6.8%. The securities purchased during the first nine months of 2015 consisted of MBS issued and guaranteed by U.S. Government agencies and sponsored-enterprises, as well as obligations of states and political subdivisions thereof (municipal securities).

The following tables summarize the securities available for sale portfolio as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

September 30, 2015		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	Estimated
Available for Sale:	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Mortgage-backed securities:				
US Government-sponsored				
enterprises	\$295,647	\$ 7,750	\$ 831	\$302,566
US Government agency	82,213	1,734	270	83,677
Private label	2,968	782	8	3,742
Obligations of states and				
political subdivisions thereof	109,649	3,621	575	112,695
Total	\$490,477	\$13,887	\$1,684	\$502,680

December 31, 2014		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	Estimated
Available for Sale:	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Mortgage-backed securities: US Government-sponsored				
enterprises	\$282,217	\$ 7,530	\$1,537	\$288,210
US Government agency	82,249	1,626	529	83,346
Private label	3,723	815	14	4,524
Obligations of states and				
political subdivisions thereof Total	90,181 \$458,370	4,516 \$14,487	252 \$2,332	94,445 \$470,525

Impaired Securities: The securities portfolio contains certain securities where amortized cost exceeds fair value, which at September 30, 2015, amounted to an excess of \$1,684, or 0.3% of the amortized cost of the total securities portfolio. At December 31, 2014 this amount represented an excess of \$2,332, or 0.5% of the amortized cost of the total securities portfolio. As of September 30, 2015, unrealized losses on securities in a continuous unrealized loss position more than twelve-months amounted to \$897, compared with \$434 at December 31, 2014.

As a part of the Company s ongoing security monitoring process, the Company identifies securities in an unrealized loss position that could potentially be other-than-temporarily impaired (OTTI). If a decline in the fair value of an available for sale security is judged to be OTTI, a charge is recorded in pre-tax earnings equal to the estimated credit

losses inherent in the security.

Further information regarding impaired securities, OTTI securities and evaluation of securities for impairment is incorporated by reference to above Note 2 under the caption *Other Than Temporary Impairments on Investment Securities* of the interim unaudited consolidated financial statements in Part I, Item 1 of this report on Form 10-Q.

Loans

Total Loans: At September 30, 2015, total loans stood at \$975,950, compared with \$919,024 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$56,926, or 6.2%.

The loan portfolio is primarily secured by real estate in the counties of Hancock, Washington, Knox, Kennebec and Sagadahoc, Maine.

The following table summarizes the components of the Bank's loan portfolio as of the dates indicated.

LOAN PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

September 30, December 31,

	2015	2014
Commercial real estate mortgages	\$372,517	\$325,949
Commercial and industrial	77,888	73,893
Commercial construction and land development	25,154	25,421
Agricultural and other loans to farmers	32,520	30,471
Total commercial loans	508,079	455,734
Residential real estate mortgages	391,068	382,678
Home equity loans	51,290	51,795
Other consumer loans	10,147	12,140
Total consumer loans	452,505	446,613
Tax exempt loans	15,319	16,693
Net deferred loan costs and fees	47	(16)
Total loans	975,950	919,024
Allowance for loan losses	(9,037)	(8,969)
Total loans net of allowance for loan losses	\$966,913	\$910,055

Commercial Loans: At September 30, 2015, total commercial loans stood at \$508,079, compared with \$455,734 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$52,345, or 11.5%.

Commercial loan growth has generally been challenged by a still-soft economy, continued economic uncertainty, diminished demand, and strong competition for quality loans. Bank management attributes the growth of commercial loans to an effective business banking team, deep local market knowledge, sustained new business development efforts, and a resilient local economy that has been faring better than the nation as a whole.

Consumer Loans: At September 30, 2015, total consumer loans, which principally consisted of residential real estate mortgage loans, amounted to \$452,505, compared with \$446,613 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$5,892, or 1.3%. The increase in consumer loans compared with year-end 2014 was aided by the purchase of residential mortgage loans. Loans originated and closed by the Bank during the first nine months of 2015 were largely offset by loan re-financings and scheduled principal amortization from the existing residential real estate loan portfolio.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is managed through loan officer authorities, loan policies, and oversight from the Bank's Chief Credit Officer, the Bank's Management Loan Committee, the Directors Loan Committee, and the Bank's Board of Directors. Management follows a policy of continually identifying, analyzing and grading credit risk inherent in the loan portfolio. An ongoing independent review, subsequent to management's review, of individual credits is performed by an independent loan review consulting firm, which reports to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

As a result of management s ongoing review of the loan portfolio, loans are placed on non-accrual status, either due to the delinquent status of principal and/or interest, or a judgment by management that, although payments of principal and or interest are current, such action is prudent because collection in full of all outstanding principal and interest is in doubt. Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when principal and or interest is 90 days overdue, or sooner, if judged appropriate by management.

Consumer loans are generally charged-off when principal and/or interest payments are 120 days overdue, or sooner, if judged appropriate by management.

Non-performing Loans: Non-performing loans include loans on non-accrual status and loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest. The following table sets forth the details of non-performing loans as of the dates indicated:

TOTAL NON-PERFORMING LOANS

	September 30,	December 31,
	2015	2014
Commercial real estate mortgages	\$1,163	\$ 3,156
Commercial and industrial loans	297	624
Commercial construction and land development	1,260	1,328
Agricultural and other loans to farmers	16	84
Total commercial loans	2,736	5,192
Residential real estate mortgages	3,492	6,051
Home equity loans	791	1,029
Other consumer loans	14	16
Total consumer loans	4,297	7,096
Total non-accrual loans	7,033	12,288
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more		
Total non-performing loans	\$7,033	\$12,288
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans	128.5%	73.0%
Non-performing loans to total loans	0.72%	1.34%
Allowance to total loans	0.93%	0.98%

At September 30, 2015, total non-performing loans amounted to \$7,033, compared with \$12,288 at December 31, 2014, representing a decline of \$5,255, or 42.8%.

Non-performing commercial real estate mortgages totaled \$1,163 at September 30, 2015, representing a decline of \$1,993, or 63.1%, compared with December 31, 2014. At September 30, 2015, non-performing commercial real estate mortgages were represented by ten business relationships, with outstanding balances ranging from \$23 to \$287.

Non-performing commercial and industrial loans totaled \$297 at September 30, 2015, representing a decline of \$327, or 52.4%, compared with December 31, 2014. At September 30, 2015, non-performing commercial and industrial loans were represented by seven business relationships, with outstanding balances ranging from \$3 to \$170.

Non-performing commercial construction and land development loans totaled \$1,260 at September 30, 2015, representing a decline of \$68, or 5.1%, compared with December 31, 2014. At September 30, 2015, non-performing commercial construction and land development loans were entirely represented by a commercial real estate loan to a local, non-profit affordable housing authority in support of an affordable housing project. This loan is principally secured by the housing units from the project. The project is fully constructed and there is no construction risk associated with the loan. The primary source of repayment is the sale of the remaining housing units.

Non-performing residential real estate mortgages totaled \$3,492 at September 30, 2015, representing a decline of \$2,559, or 42.3%, compared with December 31, 2014. At September 30, 2015, non-performing residential real estate loans were represented by thirty-six, conventional, 1-4 family mortgage loans, with outstanding balances ranging from \$6 to \$688.

Non-performing home equity loans totaled \$791 at September 30, 2015, representing a decline of \$238, or 23.1%, compared with December 31, 2014. At September 30, 2015, non-performing home equity loans were represented by six relationships with outstanding balances ranging from \$1 to \$584.

While the level and mix of non-performing loans continued to reflect favorably on the overall quality of the Bank s loan portfolio as of September 30, 2015, Bank management is cognizant of the still-recovering real estate market, elevated unemployment rates and soft economic conditions overall. Future levels of non-performing loans may be influenced by economic conditions, including the impact of those conditions on the Bank s customers, including debt service levels, collateral values, tourism activity, consumer confidence and other factors existing at the time. Management believes the economic activity and conditions in the local real estate markets will continue to be significant determinants of the quality of the loan portfolio in future periods and, thus, the Company s results of operations and financial condition.

Delinquencies and Potential Problem Loans: In addition to the non-performing loans discussed above, the Bank also has loans that are 30 to 89 days delinquent and still accruing. These loans amounted to \$1,533 and \$3,120 at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, or 0.16% and 0.34% of total loans, respectively, net of any loans classified as non-performing that are within these delinquency categories. These loans and delinquency trends in general are considered in the evaluation of the allowance for loan losses and the related determination of the provision for loan losses.

Periodically, the Bank reviews the commercial loan portfolio for evidence of potential problem loans. Potential problem loans are loans that are currently performing in accordance with contractual terms, but where known information about possible credit problems of the borrower causes doubt about the ability of the borrower to comply with the loan payment terms and may result in disclosure of such loans as non-performing at some time in the future.

At September 30, 2015, the Bank identified thirty-one commercial relationships totaling \$18,545 as potential problem loans, or 1.9% of total loans (i.e., substandard loans that are current and performing). At December 31, 2014, the Bank identified twenty-seven commercial relationships totaling \$13,534 as potential problem loans, or 1.5% of total loans. Factors such as payment history, value of supporting collateral, and personal or government guarantees led the Bank to conclude that the current risk exposure on these potential problem loans did not warrant accounting for the loans as non-performing. Although in a performing status as of quarter-end, these loans exhibited certain risk factors, which have the potential to cause them to become non-performing at some point in the future.

Troubled Debt Restructures: A Troubled Debt Restructure (TDR) results from a modification to a loan to a borrower who is experiencing financial difficulty in which the Bank grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider but for the debtor s financial difficulties. Financial difficulty arises when a debtor is bankrupt or contractually past due, or is likely to become so, based upon its ability to pay. A concession represents an accommodation not generally available to other customers, which may include below-market interest rate, deferment of principal payments, extension of maturity dates, etc. Such accommodations extended to customers who are not experiencing financial difficulty do not result in TDR classification.

As of September 30, 2015, the Bank had two agricultural loans to two relationships totaling \$108, six commercial real estate loans to four relationships totaling \$963, four commercial and industrial loans to three relationships totaling \$140, five residential real estate loans to five relationships totaling \$1,650, one

home equity loan for \$18, and one other consumer loan for \$9, that were classified as TDRs. At September 30, 2015, five of these TDRs totaling \$812 were classified as non-accrual, and none were past due 30 days or more and still accruing.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank had six real estate secured loans, six commercial and industrial loans, one agricultural loan, and one other consumer loan, to nine relationships totaling \$1,449 that were classified as TDRs. At December 31, 2014, seven of these TDRs totaling \$357 were classified as non-accrual, and none were past due 30 days or more and still accruing.

Allowance for Loan Losses: At September 30, 2015, the allowance for loan losses (the allowance) stood at \$9,037, compared with \$8,969 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$68, or 0.8%. The moderate increase in the allowance from December 31, 2014 was largely attributed to loan growth, offset by favorable changes in the overall mix of non-performing and potential problem loans. At September 30, 2015, the allowance expressed as a percentage of non-performing loans stood at 128.5%, compared with 73.0% at December 31, 2014. At September 30, 2015, the allowance expressed as a percentage of total loans stood at 0.93%, compared with 0.98% at December 31, 2014.

The allowance is available to absorb probable losses on loans. The determination of the adequacy of the allowance and provisioning for estimated losses is evaluated quarterly based on review of loans, with particular emphasis on non-performing and other loans that management believes warrant special consideration.

The allowance is maintained at a level that, in management s judgment, is appropriate for the amount of risk inherent in the current loan portfolio, and adequate to provide for estimated, probable losses. Allowances are established for specific impaired loans, a pool of reserves based on historical net loan charge-offs by loan types, and supplemental reserves that adjust historical net loss experience to reflect current economic conditions, industry specific risks, and other qualitative and environmental considerations impacting the inherent risk of loss in the current loan portfolio.

Specific allowances for impaired loans are determined based upon a discounted cash flows analysis, or as appropriate, a collateral shortfall analysis. The amount of collateral dependent impaired loans totaled \$2,022 as of September 30, 2015, compared with \$1,986 as of December 31, 2014. The related allowances for loan losses on these loans amounted to \$277 as of September 30, 2015, compared with \$776 as of December 31, 2014.

Management recognizes that early and accurate recognition of risk is the best means to reduce credit losses. The Bank employs a comprehensive risk management structure to identify and manage the risk of loss. For consumer loans, the Bank identifies loan delinquency beginning at 10-day delinquency and provides appropriate follow-up by written correspondence or personal contact. Non-residential mortgage consumer loan losses are recognized no later than the point at which a loan is 120 days past due. Residential mortgage losses are recognized during the foreclosure process, or sooner, when that loss is quantifiable and reasonably assured. For commercial loans, the Bank applies a risk grading system, which stratifies the portfolio and allows management to focus appropriate efforts on the highest risk components of the portfolio. The risk grades include ratings that correlate substantially with regulatory definitions of

Pass, Other Assets Especially Mentioned, Substandard, Doubtful, and Loss.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, changing economic conditions and the economic prospects of the borrowers may necessitate future additions or reductions to the allowance. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank s allowance, which also may necessitate future additions or reductions to the allowance, based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

The following table details changes in the allowance and summarizes loan loss experience by loan type for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

NINE MONTHS ENDED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

	2015	2014
Balance at beginning of period Charge-offs:	\$8,969	\$8,475
Commercial real estate mortgages	667	184
Commercial and industrial	310	416
Commercial construction and land development		
Agricultural and other loans to farmers	72	14
Residential real estate mortgages	70	557
Other consumer loans	48	148
Home equity loans	376	18
Tax exempt loans		
Total charge-offs	1,543	1,337
Recoveries:		
Commercial real estate mortgages	\$ 97	\$ 40
Commercial and industrial loans	33	13
Commercial construction and land development		
Agricultural and other loans to farmers	15	26
Residential real estate mortgages	129	12
Other consumer loans	17	29
Home equity loans		1
Tax exempt loans		
Total recoveries	291	121
Net charge-offs	1,252	1,216
Provision charged to operations	1,320	1,376
Balance at end of period	\$9,037	\$8,635

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, total net loan charge-offs amounted to \$1,252, or annualized net charge-offs to average loans outstanding of 0.17%, compared with \$1,216 and 0.19%, respectively, during the first nine months of 2014.

General allowances for loan losses account for the risk and estimated loss inherent in certain pools of industry and geographic loan concentrations within the loan portfolio. There were no material changes in loan concentrations

during the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

Based upon the process employed and giving recognition to all attendant factors associated with the loan portfolio, Company management believes the allowance for loan losses at September 30, 2015 is appropriate for the amount of risk inherent in the current loan portfolio and adequate to provide for estimated probable losses.

Further information regarding loans and the allowance for loan losses, is incorporated by reference to above Note 6, *Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses*, of the interim unaudited consolidated financial statements in Part I, Item 1 of this report on Form 10-Q.

Other Real Estate Owned: Real estate acquired in satisfaction of a loan is reported in other assets. Properties acquired by foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure are transferred to other real estate owned (OREO) and recorded at the lower of cost or fair market value less estimated costs to sell based on appraised value at the date actually or constructively received. Loan losses arising from the acquisition of such property are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent reductions in fair value below the carrying value are charged to other operating expenses.

At September 30, 2015, the Bank s OREO amounted to \$818, compared with \$523 as of December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$295, or 56.4%. Three residential and three commercial properties comprised the September 30, 2015 balance of OREO.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, one commercial real estate loan was added to OREO. There were write-downs totaling \$20 and one OREO property was sold for \$110. There were gains of \$64 recorded on the property that was sold.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

Bank-owned life insurance (BOLI) represents life insurance on the lives of certain current and retired employees who had provided positive consent allowing the Bank to be the beneficiary of such policies. Increases in the cash value of the policies, as well as insurance proceeds received in excess of the cash value, are recorded in other non-interest income, and are not subject to income taxes. The cash surrender value of the BOLI is included on the Company s consolidated balance sheet.

At September 30, 2015, the cash surrender value of BOLI amounted to \$23,575, compared with \$8,141 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$15,434, or 189.6%. The increase in BOLI was attributed to additional purchases during the first quarter of this year and, to a lesser extent, increases in the cash surrender value of the existing and new BOLI policies.

Deposits

Historically, the banking business in the Bank s market area has been seasonal, with lower deposits in the winter through late spring and higher deposits in summer and autumn. These seasonal swings have been fairly predictable and have not had a materially adverse impact on the Bank. Seasonal swings in deposits have been typically absorbed by the Bank s strong liquidity position, including borrowing capacity from the FHLB of Boston, brokered certificates of deposit obtained from the national market and cash flows from the securities portfolio.

At September 30, 2015, total deposits stood at \$1,010,894, compared with \$858,049 at December 31, 2014, representing an increase of \$152,845, or 17.8%. The Bank s transaction accounts experienced a combined increase of \$58,678, or 12.2%, compared with December 31, 2014, largely reflecting the seasonality of the Bank s core deposit base. Time deposits increased \$94,167 compared with December 31, 2014, which was largely attributed to certificates of deposit obtained from the national market. This increase was utilized to help fund the Bank s earning asset growth while shifting \$51,414 of its borrowings into time deposits, thereby bolstering its on balance sheet liquidity position.

Borrowed Funds

Borrowed funds principally consist of advances from the FHLB of Boston (the FHLB) and, to a lesser extent, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Fed funds purchased. Advances from the FHLB are secured by stock in the FHLB, investment securities, blanket liens on qualifying mortgage loans and home equity loans, and certain commercial real estate loans.

The Bank utilizes borrowed funds to leverage its strong capital position and support its earning asset portfolios. Borrowed funds are principally utilized to support the Bank s investment securities portfolio and, to a lesser extent, fund loan growth. Borrowed funds also provide a means to help manage balance sheet interest rate risk, given the Bank s ability to select desired amounts, terms and maturities on a daily basis.

At September 30, 2015, total borrowings amounted to \$395,606, compared with \$447,020 at December 31, 2014, representing a decline of \$51,414, or 11.5%. During the current quarter the Bank shifted a portion of its borrowings into time deposits, thereby strengthening its on balance sheet liquidity position.

Capital Resources

Consistent with its long-term goal of operating a sound and profitable organization, the Company maintained its strong capital position and continued to be a well-capitalized bank holding company according to applicable regulatory standards. Management believes this to be vital in promoting depositor and investor confidence and providing a solid foundation for future growth.

Capital Ratios: The Company and the Bank are subject to the risk-based capital guidelines administered by the Company s and the Bank's principal regulators. The risk-based capital guidelines are designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies, to account for off-balance sheet exposure and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Under these guidelines, assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories, each with appropriate weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items. Effective January 1, 2015, the Company and the Bank adopted the Basel III capital adequacy rules which, among other changes added a new risk-weighted capital measure Common Equity Tier I (CETI). The new Basel III capital adequacy guidelines require all banks and bank holding companies to maintain minimum capital ratios of:

Common Equity Tier I of 4.5%

.

Total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.0%

Tier I capital to total risk-weighted assets of 6.0%

.

•

.

.

Tier I capital to average assets (Leverage Ratio) of 4.0%

Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial statements.

As depicted in the table below, as of September 30, 2015, the Company and the Bank were considered *well-capitalized* under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. Under the Basel III capital adequacy guidelines, a *well-capitalized* institution must maintain the following capital ratios:

Common Equity Tier I of 6.5%

Total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets of 10.0%

Tier I capital to total risk-weighted assets of 8.0%

•

•

Tier I capital to average assets ($\ Leverage \ Ratio$) of 5.0%

The following tables set forth the Company's and the Bank s regulatory capital at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, under the rules applicable at that date.

						To be well Capitalized under		
				For Cap	oital	Prompt co		
	Consolidated	l		Adequacy P	urposes	Action pro	ovisions	
As of September 30, 2015	Actual Amount	Ratio		luired 10unt	Ratio	Required Amount	Ratio	
Total Capital								
(To Risk-Weighted Assets)								
Consolidated	\$157,242	16.66%	\$ 7	5,511	8.0%	N/A		
Bank	\$159,000	16.86%	\$ 7	5,442	8.0%	\$ 94,303	10.0%	
Common Equity Tier 1								
(To Risk-Weighted Assets)								
Consolidated	\$143,021	15.15%	\$ 4	2,475	4.5%	N/A		
Bank	\$144,779	15.35%	\$ 4	2,436	4.5%	\$ 61,297	6.5%	
Tier 1 Capital								
(To Risk-Weighted Assets)								
Consolidated	\$143,021	15.15%	\$ 5	6,633	6.0%	N/A		
Bank	\$144,779	15.35%	\$ 5	6,582	6.0%	\$ 75,442	8.0%	
Leverage Capital Ratio								
Total Capital								
(To Total Assets for Leverage								
Ratio)								
Consolidated	\$143,021	9.04%		3,270	4.0%			
Bank	\$144,779	9.16%	\$ 6	3,237	4.0%	\$ 79,047	5.0%	

					To be	e well
					Capitaliz	ed under
			For Ca	oital	Prompt c	orrective
	Consolidated		Adequacy Purposes		Action provisions	
	Actual		Required		Required	
As of December 31, 2014	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio
Total Carital						

(To Risk-Weighted Assets)						
Consolidated	\$148,188	17.24%	\$68,766	8.0%	N/A	
Bank	\$149,546	17.42%	\$68,697	8.0%	\$85,871	10.0%
Tier 1 Capital						
(To Risk-Weighted Assets)						
Consolidated	\$134,099	15.60%	\$34,383	4.0%	N/A	
Bank	\$135,457	15.77%	\$34,348	4.0%	\$51,522	6.0%
Tier 1 Capital						
(To Average Assets)						
Consolidated	\$134,099	9.30%	\$57,689	4.0%	N/A	
Bank	\$135,457	9.40%	\$57,656	4.0%	\$72,070	5.0%

Trends, Events or Uncertainties: There are no known trends, events or uncertainties, nor any recommendations by any regulatory authority, that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the Company s capital resources, liquidity, or financial condition.

Cash Dividends: The Company's principal source of funds to pay cash dividends and support its commitments is derived from Bank operations.

The Company paid a regular cash dividend of 25.5 cents per share of common stock in the third quarter of 2015, representing an increase of 2.5 cents, or 10.9%, compared with the third quarter of 2014.

The Company's Board of Directors recently declared a fourth quarter 2015 regular cash dividend of 26.0 cents per share of Company common stock, representing an increase of 2.5 cents, or 10.6%, compared with the fourth quarter of 2014. The quarterly cash dividend is payable to all Company stockholders of record as of the close of business November 13, 2015, and will be paid on December 15, 2015. This represented the eighteenth consecutive quarter where the Company increased its quarterly cash dividend to shareholders.

Stock Repurchase Plan: In August 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved a program to repurchase up to 450,000 shares of the Company s common stock, or approximately 10.2% of the shares then currently outstanding. The stock repurchase program became effective as of August 21, 2008, and was authorized to continue for a period of up to twenty-four consecutive months. In August of 2010, the Company s Board of Directors authorized the continuance of this program through August 17, 2012. In August of 2012, the Company s Board of Directors authorized the continuance of this program through August 17, 2014. In July of 2014, the Company s Board of Directors authorized the continuance of this program through August 17, 2016. Depending on market conditions and other factors, these purchases may be commenced or suspended at any time, or from time to time, without prior notice and may be made in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions.

As of September 30, 2015, the Company had repurchased 158,413 shares of stock under this plan, at a total cost of \$2,968 and an average price of \$18.74 per share. During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Company repurchased 656 shares under the plan, of which 221 shares were repurchased in the second quarter and 435 shares were repurchased in the third quarter. The Company records repurchased shares as treasury stock.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is, from time to time, a party to certain off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on the Company's financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources, that may be considered material to investors.

Standby Letters of Credit: The Bank guarantees the obligations or performance of certain customers by issuing standby letters of credit to third parties. These letters of credit are sometimes issued in support of third party debt. The risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers, and they are subject to the same origination, portfolio maintenance and management procedures in effect to monitor other credit products. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon issuance of a standby letter of credit, is based upon management's credit evaluation of the customer.

At September 30, 2015, commitments under existing standby letters of credit totaled \$385, compared with \$325 at December 31, 2014. The fair value of the standby letters of credit was not significant as of the foregoing dates.

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financial needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and certain financial derivative instruments; namely, interest rate cap agreements.

Commitments to Extend Credit: Commitments to extend credit represent agreements by the Bank to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. These commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of these commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis using the same credit policies as it does for its balance sheet instruments, such as loans. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon the issuance of commitment, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer.

The following table summarizes the Bank s commitments to extend credit as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

	September 30,	December 31,	
	2015	2014	
Commitments to originate loans	\$ 42,030	\$ 21,147	
Unused lines of credit	98,326	92,817	
Un-advanced portions of construction loans	14,857	23,434	
Total	\$155,213	\$137,398	

Financial Derivative Instruments: As part of its overall asset and liability management strategy, the Bank periodically uses derivative instruments to minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings and cash flows caused by interest rate volatility. The Bank's interest rate risk management strategy involves modifying the re-pricing characteristics of certain assets and liabilities so that change in interest rates does not have a significant adverse effect on net interest income. Derivative instruments that management periodically uses as part of its interest rate risk management strategy include interest rate swap agreements, interest rate floor agreements, and interest rate cap agreements.

At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Bank had four outstanding, off-balance sheet, derivative instruments. These derivative instruments were interest rate cap agreements, with notional principal amounts totaling

\$90,000. The notional amounts of the financial derivative instruments do not represent exposure to credit loss. The bank is exposed to credit loss only to the extent the counter-party defaults in its responsibility to pay interest under the terms of the agreements. The interest rate cap agreements were purchased by the Bank to limit its exposure to rising interest rates and were designated as cash flow hedges.

Further information covering the Bank s derivative instruments is incorporated by reference to Part I, Item 1, Note 8 of the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Liquidity

Liquidity is measured by the Company s ability to meet short-term cash needs at a reasonable cost or minimal loss. The Company seeks to obtain favorable sources of liabilities and to maintain prudent levels of liquid assets in order to satisfy varied liquidity demands. Besides serving as a funding source for maturing obligations, liquidity provides flexibility in responding to customer-initiated needs. Many

factors affect the Company s ability to meet liquidity needs, including variations in the markets served by its network of offices, its mix of assets and liabilities, reputation and credit standing in the marketplace, and general economic conditions.

The Bank actively manages its liquidity position through target ratios established under its asset liability management policy. Continual monitoring of these ratios, both historical and through forecasts under multiple rate scenarios, allows the Bank to employ strategies necessary to maintain adequate liquidity. A portion of the Bank s deposit base has been historically seasonal in nature, with balances typically declining in the winter months through late spring, during which period the Bank s liquidity position tightens.

The Bank uses a basic surplus model to measure its liquidity over 30 and 90-day time horizons. The relationship between liquid assets and short-term liabilities that are vulnerable to non-replacement are routinely monitored. The Bank s general policy is to maintain a liquidity position of 4% or higher of total assets over the 30-day horizon. At September 30, 2015, liquidity, as measured by the basic surplus/deficit model, was 13.4% over the 30-day horizon and 14.0% over the 90-day horizon, largely reflecting strong seasonal deposit in-flows.

At September 30, 2015, the Bank had unused lines of credit and net unencumbered qualifying collateral availability to support its credit line with the FHLB of Boston approximating \$266 million. The Bank also had capacity to borrow funds on a secured basis utilizing the Borrower-In-Custody (BIC) program and the Discount Window at the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston. At September 30, 2015, the Bank s available secured line of credit at the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston stood at \$152,483, or 9.7% of the Bank s total assets. The Bank also has access to the national brokered deposit market, and periodically uses this funding source to bolster its on-balance sheet liquidity position.

The Bank maintains a liquidity contingency plan approved by the Bank s Board of Directors. This plan addresses the steps that would be taken in the event of a liquidity crisis, and identifies other sources of liquidity available to the Company. The Company believes that the level of liquidity is sufficient to meet current and future funding requirements. However, changes in economic conditions, including consumer savings habits and availability or access to the brokered deposit market could potentially have a significant impact on the Company s liquidity position.

Recent Accounting Developments

The following information presents a summary of Accounting Standards Updates ($ASU \ s$) that were recently adopted by the Company, as well as those that will be subject to implementation in future periods.

In January 2015, FASB issued ASU 2015-01, *Income Statement Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20), Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Items,* as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards (the Simplification Initiative). This ASU eliminates from U.S.

GAAP the concept of extraordinary items. Eliminating the concept of extraordinary items will save time and reduce costs for preparers because they will not have to assess whether a particular event or transaction event is extraordinary (even if they ultimately would conclude it is not). This also alleviates uncertainty for preparers, auditors, and regulators because auditors and regulators no longer will need to evaluate whether a preparer treated an unusual and/or infrequent item appropriately. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015. A reporting entity may apply the amendments prospectively. A reporting entity also may apply the amendments retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Early adoption is permitted provided that the guidance is applied from the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. Management intends to adopt ASU

2015-01 on January 1, 2016 and does not believe that the adoption will have a material effect on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09).* The scope of the guidance applies to revenue arising from contracts with customers, except for the following: lease contracts, insurance contracts, contractual rights and obligations within the scope of other guidance and nonmonetary exchanges between entities in the same line of business to facilitate sales to customers. The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to reflect the transfer of goods and services to customers in an amount equal to the consideration that the entity receives or expects to receive. ASU 2014-09 is not expected to impact the timing or approach to revenue recognition for financial institutions. The likely impact for financial institutions will relate only to disclosures. The amendments are effective for public entities for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-09 to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-04, *Receivables Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Topic 310), Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure,* to clarify when an in substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, that is, when a creditor should be considered to have received physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan such that the loan receivable should be derecognized and the real estate property recognized. The ASU requires interim and annual disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreclosed residential real estate property held by the creditor and (2) the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by residential real estate property that are in the process of foreclosure according to local requirements of the applicable jurisdiction. The ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2014. The Company s adoption of ASU 2014-04 on January 1, 2015 did not have a material effect on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss in a financial instrument arising from adverse changes in market rates/prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. Interest rate risk is the most significant market risk affecting the Company. Other types of market risk do not arise in the normal course of the Company s business activities.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk can be defined as an exposure to movement in interest rates that could have an adverse impact on the Bank's net interest income. Interest rate risk arises from the imbalance in the re-pricing, maturity and/or cash flow characteristics of assets and liabilities. Management's objectives are to measure, monitor and develop strategies in response to the interest rate risk profile inherent in the Bank's balance sheet. The objectives in managing the Bank's balance sheet are to preserve the sensitivity of net interest income to actual or potential changes in interest rates, and to enhance profitability through strategies that promote sufficient reward for understood and controlled risk.

The Bank's interest rate risk measurement and management techniques incorporate the re-pricing and cash flow attributes of balance sheet and off balance sheet instruments as they relate to current and potential changes in interest rates. The level of interest rate risk, measured in terms of the potential future effect on net interest income, is determined through the use of modeling and other techniques under multiple interest rate scenarios. Interest rate risk is evaluated in depth on a quarterly basis and reviewed by the Senior Executive Team (SET) and the Bank's Board of Directors.

The Bank's Asset Liability Management Policy, approved annually by the Bank's Board of Directors, establishes interest rate risk limits in terms of variability of net interest income under rising, flat, and decreasing rate scenarios. It is the role of SET to evaluate the overall risk profile and to determine actions to maintain and achieve a posture consistent with policy guidelines.

The Bank utilizes an interest rate risk model widely recognized in the financial industry to monitor and measure interest rate risk. The model simulates the behavior of interest income and expense of all balance sheet and off-balance sheet instruments, under different interest rate scenarios together with a dynamic future balance sheet. Interest rate risk is measured in terms of potential changes in net interest income based upon shifts in the yield curve.

The interest rate risk sensitivity model requires that assets and liabilities be broken down into components as to fixed, variable, and adjustable interest rates, as well as other homogeneous groupings, which are segregated as to maturity and type of instrument. The model includes assumptions about how the balance sheet is likely to evolve through time and in different interest rate environments. The model uses contractual re-pricing dates for variable products, contractual maturities for fixed rate products, and product specific assumptions for deposit accounts, such as money market accounts, that are subject to re-pricing based on current market conditions. Re-pricing margins are also determined for adjustable rate assets and incorporated in the model. Investment securities and borrowings with call provisions are examined on an individual basis in each rate environment to estimate the likelihood of a call. Prepayment assumptions for mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities are developed from industry median estimates of prepayment speeds, based upon similar coupon ranges and seasoning. Cash flows and maturities are then determined, and for certain assets, prepayment assumptions are estimated under different interest rate scenarios. Interest income and interest expense are then simulated under several hypothetical interest rate conditions including:

A flat interest rate scenario in which current prevailing rates are locked in and the only balance sheet fluctuations that occur are due to cash flows, maturities, new volumes, and re-pricing volumes consistent with this flat rate assumption.

A 200 basis point rise or decline in interest rates applied against a parallel shift in the yield curve over a twelve-month period together with a dynamic balance sheet anticipated to be consistent with such interest rate changes.

Various non-parallel shifts in the yield curve, including changes in either short-term or long-term rates over a twelve-month horizon, together with a dynamic balance sheet anticipated to be consistent with such interest rate changes.

An extension of the foregoing simulations to each of two, three, four and five year horizons to determine the interest rate risk with the level of interest rates stabilizing in years two through five. Even though rates remain stable during this two to five year time period, re-pricing opportunities driven by maturities, cash flow, and adjustable rate products will continue to change the balance sheet profile for each of the rate conditions.

Changes in net interest income based upon the foregoing simulations are measured against the flat interest rate scenario and actions are taken to maintain the balance sheet interest rate risk within established policy guidelines.

The following table summarizes the Bank's net interest income sensitivity analysis as of September 30, 2015, over one and two-year horizons and under rising and declining interest rate scenarios. In light of the Federal Funds rate of 0% to 0.25% and the two-year U.S. Treasury Note of 0.63% on the date presented, the analysis incorporates a declining interest rate scenario of 100 basis points, rather than the 200 basis points, as would traditionally be the case.

INTEREST RATE RISK

CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME FROM THE FLAT RATE SCENARIO

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

	-100 Basis Points Parallel Yield Curve Shift	+200 Basis Points Parallel Yield Curve Shift
Year 1		
Net interest income (\$)	\$ 28	\$ (536)
Net interest income (%)	0.06%	-1.18%
Year 2		
Net interest income (\$)	\$(1,751)	\$(1,628)
Net interest income (%)	-3.86%	-3.59%

As more fully discussed below, the September 30, 2015, interest rate sensitivity modeling results indicate that the Bank s balance sheet was moderately liability sensitive over the one and two-year horizons (i.e., moderately exposed to rising interest rates).

Assuming short-term and long-term interest rates decline 100 basis points from current levels (i.e., a parallel yield curve shift) and the Bank s balance sheet structure and size remain at current levels, management believes net interest income will remain relatively stable over the one year horizon and then decline moderately over the two-year horizon as declining earning assets yields outpace reductions in funding costs. Should the yield curve steepen as rates fall, the model suggests that accelerated earning asset prepayments will slow, resulting in a more stabilized level of net interest income. Management anticipates that moderate to strong earning asset growth will be needed to meaningfully increase the Bank s current level of net interest income should both long-term and short-term interest rates decline in parallel.

Assuming the Bank s balance sheet structure and size remain at current levels and the Federal Reserve increases short-term interest rates by 200 basis points with the balance of the yield curve shifting in parallel with these increases, management believes net interest income will decline moderately over the one-year and two year horizons and then level off over the three year horizon and beyond. The interest rate sensitivity simulation model suggests that as interest rates rise, the Bank s funding costs will initially re-price disproportionately with earning asset yields to a moderate degree. As funding costs begin to stabilize early in the third year of the simulation, the model suggests that the earning asset portfolios will continue to re-price at prevailing interest rate levels and cash flows from the Bank s earning asset portfolios will be reinvested into higher yielding earning assets, resulting in a widening of spreads and a stabilization of net interest income over the three year horizon and beyond. Management believes moderate to strong earning asset growth will be necessary to meaningfully increase the current level of net interest income over the one-year and two-year horizons should short-term and long-term interest rates rise in parallel.

Interest rates plummeted during 2008 and have remained historically low ever since, as the global economy slowed at unprecedented levels, unemployment levels soared, delinquencies on all types of loans increased along with decreased consumer confidence and dramatic declines in housing prices. Management believes the most significant ongoing factor affecting market risk exposure and the impact on net interest income continues to be the slow and extended recovery from the severe nationwide recession and the U.S. Government s extraordinary responses, including a variety of government stimulus programs and quantitative easing strategies.

The Federal Reserve has maintained short-term interest rates at historically low levels for an extended period of time, threatening net interest income. Net interest income exposure is also significantly affected by the shape and level of the U.S. Government securities and interest rate swap yield curve, and changes in the size and composition of the Bank s loan, investment and deposit portfolios.

The preceding sensitivity analysis does not represent a Company forecast and should not be relied upon as being indicative of expected operating results. These hypothetical estimates are based upon numerous assumptions including: the nature and timing of interest rate levels and yield curve shape, prepayment speeds on loans and securities, deposit rates, pricing decisions on loans and deposits, reinvestment or replacement of asset and liability cash flows, and renegotiated loan terms with borrowers. While assumptions are developed based upon current economic and local market conditions, the Company cannot make any assurances as to the predictive nature of these assumptions including how customer preferences or competitor influences might change.

As market conditions vary from those assumed in the sensitivity analysis, actual results may also differ due to: prepayment and refinancing levels deviating from those assumed; the impact of interest rate change caps or floors on adjustable rate assets; the potential effect of changing debt service levels on customers with adjustable rate loans; depositor early withdrawals and product preference changes; and other such variables. The sensitivity analysis also does not reflect additional actions that the Bank s SET and Board of Directors might take in responding to or anticipating changes in interest rates, and the anticipated impact on the Bank s net interest income.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Company management evaluated, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report. Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and regulations and are operating in an effective manner.

No change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1: Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to certain ordinary routine litigation incidental to the normal conduct of their respective businesses, which in the opinion of management based upon currently available information will have no material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Item 1A: Risk Factors

We believe the risk factors identified in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, continue to represent the most significant risks to our future results of operations and financial conditions, without modification or amendment. Please refer to such risk factors listed in Part 1, Item 1A of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

Item 2: Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a) None.

(b) None.

(c) Shares purchase activity during the three months ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:

	(a)	(b)	(c)	(d)
				Maximum Number
				of Shares that May
	Total Number		Ŭ	Yet Be Purchased
	of Shares	0		Under the Plans or
Period	Purchased	Paid per Share	or Programs	Programs (1)
July 1-31, 2015	435	\$35.65	435	291,587
August 1-31, 2015		\$		291,587
September 1-30, 2015		\$		291,587

Additional information regarding the Company's Stock Repurchase Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Part I, Item 2 of this Report on Form 10-Q under the captions, Financial Condition, Capital Resources and Stock Repurchase Plan.

Item 3: Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4: Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5: Other Information

None.

Item 6: Exhibits

The exhibits required to be furnished as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are listed in the Exhibit Index hereto and are incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES

(Registrant)

/s/Curtis C. Simard

Curtis C. Simard President & Chief Executive Officer

/s/Gerald Shencavitz

Date: November 5, 2015

Date: November 5, 2015

Gerald Shencavitz

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

& Principal Accounting Officer

Exhibit Index

- 3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date (filed herewith).
- 3.2 Bylaws, as amended to date (incorporated herein by reference to Form 8-K, Exhibit 3, filed with the Commission on November 29, 2011).
 - 4 Instruments Defining Rights of Security Holders.
- 4.1 Certificate of Designations, Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A (incorporated herein by reference to Form 8-K, Exhibit 3.1, filed with the Commission on January 21, 2009).
- 4.2 Form of Specimen Stock Certificate for Series A Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Form 8-K, Exhibit 4.1, filed with the Commission on January 21, 2009).
- 4.3 Debt Securities Purchase Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Form 10-K, Part IV, Item 15, Exhibit 4.5, filed with the commission on March 16, 2009).
- 4.4 Form of Subordinated Debt Security of Bar Harbor Bank & Trust (incorporated herein by reference to Form 10-K, Part IV, Item 15, Exhibit 4.6, filed with the Commission on March 16, 2009).
- 10.1 * Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (SVP Phantom Stock) made subject to the Company s previously filed Equity Incentive Plan of 2015 (filed herewith).
- 11.1 Statement re computation of per share earnings (data required by SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share, is provided in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements in this report on Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by reference thereto).
- 31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer under Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (filed herewith).
- 31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer under Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (filed herewith).
- 32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer under 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (furnished herewith).
 - 32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer under 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (furnished herewith).
 - 101 Financial statements from the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Bar Harbor Bankshares for the period ended September 30, 2015, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

*Management contract or compensatory arrangement.